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Mesge from Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

During the uncertainty caused by various situations around us, al
operation must be cautious, and having the measure of readines
business can run smoothly, considering the healththsaietyaahaft
employees, community and surrodindingpispaaty.remains comm
conducting business to generate continuous and sustainable f
achieve organizational goals. In 2024, the company planssto ir
business due to the current global era of technology, winotwvtis cc
potential market. Furthermore, the company's strong partnership
(EG) will support and drive the company's staeicsdgieigOartipany
Limited has been established to conduct business in the electror
Testing Center for 5G system devices. The establishment of this
the strategy to expand business and strengtienfareompany i

In addition to theeshoatjustments, the Company needs a clear plan to innovate the new th
to sole the social and environment problems in ordebeémgrdataighbgtied \wediducts devel
responstly for the entire life cycle products, including responsibility for the pollution that m
process and trying to rectify these in order to\Wiihimeze éneenpactr determination to reduce
engdsions, the Company has adopted the Circular Economy principlkasdirleié procaidongor
sustainable businetsermore, NDGP, a subsidiary, has expanded its Bio Charcoal busines:
fuel from bamboo to reduce the use of coal, which is the fuel that emits the most grdenhot
installation of mactheesgdand quarter of 2025, and commercial charcoal production will be

In 2@20ur total revedili: MBillion BamtrreasH81.86lillion Badrhpared with the 3&aezaimpany's
operating profit was 7.85 million baht (based on consolidated financial statements)Q2B8. inci
This is a result of focusing onnsatgsgirbayicts, coupled with controlling salexp@dsadong
normal level, Altheugbmpany hasadiglay compstitiggons, but the Board of Directors tog
employeeslput their energy and afford to take tthgrongamnigtginably
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, thainod@Mamatmreestof N.D. Rubber Public Company
to thank all shareholders, including business partners for all the trust, including thenalesys
and private sect oromparyaes cammited @acomguatbysihess wathp
responsibility towards society, environment, stakeholders, in order for good sustainably ret

2

Mr. Pongsak Swadwan
Chairman
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PART 1

STRUCTURE AND BUSINESS OF
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1. STRUCTURE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

1.1 Structure and Business Operations

1.1.1 Vision, Mission,i&gatéGoals in Business Operation
Vision
NDR aims to enhance image products, services and businesses through continuous
orddor the company to grow modern and sustainably.

Mission

We will implement continuous improvement processes in all activities of the organi.
organization modern and that meet the needs of consumers include are environmen

Strategp

Encourage all departments to continually review the development process and a
need to be done on a regular basis.

Use modern technology to optimize the pratlantioorpresdsdy friendly.

Innovate to add value to thenaetdcmbsumer needs.

Promote activities to develop stakeholders as well as conducting business by adl
fairness to trading partners throughout the supply chain.

Seeking new partners to create opportunities and reduce the risks to the busines
Looking for new business partners to expand or step into new businesses.
Increase the deweiorg power of employees to increase the conceptual framewor
more creative freedom and create an innovative culture.

Create an organizational culture for personnel to learn and change working meth
Make the products of organization unique and memorable.

Goals

We aim to be an organization with modern and sustainable growth with good corpo
conducting business with consideration for the environment and society for the be:s
stakeholders.
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1.1.2 Important Changes and Developments

Year 2014
March Completed tire mixing building and set up a compound mixing machine
April Made a memorandum of understanding with Thai Suzuki Motors Co., Ltd."

motorcycle tire in local OEM is currently under patent registration.
May Increase registered capital anotheisbare Malsba#$Otal registered is 215.0
MillidBahdnd registered its conversion into Public Companies.

Year 2015

January Share listingnaithen for public

May Completed tire mixing building and set up a compound mixing machine

May Made a memorandum of understanding with CEAT Limited a customer in |
under ~ CEATuH trademar ks.

Year 2016

April Launching new product . |l t3s new i
Safety and saving is better than Tubes.

October Installation the Solar Cells System for 99X KW. The purpose is for own con

Novembédaking agreement with partners to establish the joint venture company for 1

Decembé& st abl i shed the jointLlbwentwumpe foom
channel for Motorcycle Tires and Motorcycle Tubes.

Year 2017

Novembdéistablished a subsidiary company in the name of N.DtsEmamggiRessois Co., |
designing, research and development and distributor of electrlwitiy transmi
wired and wireless to support all types of applications.

Decembategotiations on the acquisition biiad Bleaneg Blibber Manufactory (Malaya) !
( F K R MWhklftansaction is expected to be completed by February 2018.

Year 2018
FebruaryOfficially holding all shares of Fung Keong Rubber Manufactory (Malaya) St
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Year 2021
May Invested in ETRAN (Thailand) Co., Ltd., a manufacturer and distributor of
Thailand

Year 2022
July Established a subsidiary company in the name of N.D. Green Planet Co., |
electricity produced feorargglés companies in the group.

Year 2023
N.D. Green Planet Co., Ltd., to produce and distribution electricity from sola

Year 202

June The Companyypu) il ssued and all ocated
Industries Beémhawhount of not exceed of 110,000r68@lghdrescompany has ¢
paidip registered capital of 456,891,630 shares.

August Establishment of a sMiosid@aGompany Limited, to operate in the electronics |
a customer base of 5G businesses.

Novembét.D. Green Planet €gpahtis its Bio Charcoal business to produce and sell b

1.1.3 Use of funds for fundraising purposes @smntiog ob tibe@\@02al General Meeting of
Shareholders H&ilarch 20dhich approlvedssuance of warrants to purchase ordinary
N.D. Rubber Public CompanyWited(|NCERi$teng shareholders by way of Right Offe
N/A

Use of funds for fundraising purposes accordig tExtieoetoayo@aieral Meeting of tr
Shareholders Nch&ld@BAugu02which appravessued and allocated the newly issuec
ordinary shares to PrivateEdodostres, Betbil1 0000,060ares, at the @i of

Baht per share 1882000,B@0t. The Company utilized the capitiDewzed2@2as of 3

as follows:
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Unit = Baht
Amount rece| Proceeds stdee| Ending Bala
under utilizal 1JW42 3L Déel2 | as oflDet42
To establish Xtronic Co., Ltd. (¥ 198,000,00 196,673,400 1,326,600
in a Testing Centeabdsipesade
working capital for the Compal

support current business opera
Total 198,000,00 196,673,400 1,326,600

Objective(s)

1.2 Nature of Business
1.2.1 Revenue Structure

Product sales revenue structure divided by type of products of the Company and di
past year as follows:

Revenue Structure by Product Revenue Structure by Geography

m Motercycle Tires
H Oversea Selling

0
1% Income

B Motercycle Tubes
m Domestic Selling

Battery for Car and Income

Motercycle
H Other Income

Automotive Rubber
Parts

H Other Income

SaleRevenue Unit : Million BahtProfit for the Year Unit : Million Baht
923.57 7.85
[

-24.72

846.25 839 20

02 D3 D

022 023 024

2
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Total Assets Unit : Million Baht Total Liabilities Unit : Million Baht

1,224.67 286.42

277.82

1,108.20

1, 039 23

258.91

022

1.2.2 Description of Products
1.2.2 (1) Product Characteristic

N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited

The Company manufactures and distribute
and tubes to®oth gi n al Equip
anReplacement Equipment ManuRa&uvan %m
domestic and overseas market in various ty

usage.

=)

Scooter

Road Tires

Tires

HUBEEH

NDR is also a distributor of FB car and mo
which will be sold to the related companie: @
distribution channels and be traded accord
pricelhe motorcycle battery will be sold to ftl

IS mostlghistributor of tires and motorcycle tires

r’*'t"xuh.

N.D. Integg2oimpany Limited
Operates the business of manufacturing and distributing rubber parts for autorRative use &
characteristics can be classfeddoyuring saHolibw
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Rubber CompressionTMethadkpiece is forme oo o

compression molding process to produce a ra B (L v.:
o g

rubber molded components. The characteristic % ’o.atj

be the same as original mold. Part inrthig satg ol ol by

- Extrusion

rubber sheet and bush.

w
- Moulded & Blow Moulded “ @
D

Rubber Extrusion Mhethmdduction of rubber pi fomcay =" D
extrusion process thrdRagh idig¢his category is o

gasket, glass gasket and rubber pipelines

- Moulded
- Extrusion

N.D. Green Planet Company Limited
Operates the business of producingedextroigtr s ouer Bio

produced from solar energy to companies i s
installing solar panels of 2.1 MW. Currently, it
Bio Charcoal business to produce and sell bio

Xtronic Co.,Ltd
PCBA

Xtronic Company Limited
Operates the busirlbgselsctronics industry, with a _sc related Products
customer base lafisinesses -Photonics Optical Transceiver
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1.2.2 (2) Marketing and Competition within the Industry

Marketing Policy
Products in the motorcycle tire indu

replicated which may be differences or distinctive features that are not very differe
as a group of industries that use product prices as the main competitive mecha
Company therefore has etbanrkietiimg policies as follows:

1. Target Group

The Company also focuses on expanding its business into foreign markets. C
sold ®ermu@ambodia, Myanmar, Laos, Philippivéstnaout MKldegegynited
Kingdommdia aNthlaysia, etc. The @lsmbasya group of OEM customers, which
of customers from motorcycle manufacturerseqeesusiDRexs produce motorcy:
tire and tube under their desired brand.

2. Product Quality
The Company focuses on the quality of products that meet the needs of const
fair price structure which suitable with product quality and able to compete ir
importantly, all types of products musbroengetdifiedustry standards as well as
certified by the standards of the partner countries that the Company produce
countries.

3. Market Survey/Consumer Needs
Al t hough this i ndustt differentiade itself ffoml eomgetita
market surveys or consumer behavior surveys is the main strategy that the Col
importance in order to truly reach and understand the needs of consumers.

4. Research and Development
Research and Development Department that coordinates with the Marketing
Company?®s focus on pr oduc tdepih eafermationp n

10
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Is collected and analyzed in order to formulate a product design, including the L
in the design to obtain quality products and create the highest satisfaction for ¢

5. Brand awareness communication is the key to building recognition to create cc
services, make the product valuable in the minds of consumers. The Co
communication strategies as follows:

M Online

- Communication through social media to be in line with current consumer

- Public relations through mass media or news agencies

- Influencer to communicate to draw attention in the product to target cons
1 Offline

- Marketing promotion activities with distributors

- ParticipatilgatorspRecing

- Organizing seminar with distributors to build relationship

- Joining road show/exhibition

Competitive Situation in the Market

As motorcycle tire industry is a product that is not much different in appearance
product that can be used interchangeably causing consumers mainly choose pre
price, resulting in product price being the main factor in competition in the market

In addition, Thailand is a country that is open to trade liberalization. In the old ©
countries that were imported to sell in Thailand, must have to pay import tax, but
policies have allowed fosetgupriatbories in Thailand which is considered to incre
competition because the factory of Thai nationality have to fight against foreign caj
in Thailaréhr example, a manufacturer from Chind uishrodsiciqgabdse to set up
factory in Rayong which is the largest, top five in the world. From now on, the c
intensify.

1.2.2 (3) Procurement of Products and Services
The Company?s ma indhataral rubbectsiatedifondboof s n
total raw materials, which been ordered from a major distributor in the south of T
relationship and business cooperation for more than 10 years.

11
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Ordering raw materials from each manufacturer and distributor, the purchasing
comparative data on the conditions of manufacturers and distributors once a yea
ordering. If new manufacturers amemikiribgtthrs year, the Company will compare w
manufactures and distributors and stored as a database. However, the Compan
orders and will reduce the proportion of orders if it is foundareaptoochaaeg femmma
one supplier and will consider the quality of raw materials as an important factor.
does not rely on manufacturers or distributors for more than 30% of the total raw n
not have a polayter into any monopoly contracts with manufacturers or distributors
material which is natural rubber, the Company will use the subscription method f
in advance to reduce the risk of price fluctuations.

The Company will produce products according to customer orders classified by p
production capacity and utilization are as follows:

No. Product Operated| Unit | 202 202
Motorcycle Tire NDR | Pcs/Ye

L Maximum Capacity 3,000,0 3,000,0
Actual Production 15 %170 1,691,5
Capacity Utilizatior % 51.91| 56.39
Motorcycle Tube NDR | Pcs/Ye

5 Maximum Capacity 7,200,0 7,200,0
Actual Production 2,726,7 3,172,7
Capacity Utilizatior % 37.87| 44.07
Rubber Parts NDI Kg&'eal

3 Maximum Capacity 711,44 710,50
Actual Production 252,76 142,58
Capacity Utilizatior % $H.53| 20.07

1.2.2 (4) Assetssed in Business Operations
As of 31 Decemfydixedassets that the Company uses for business operation ha
deducting accumulated depreci@iQaasq@ddtibixed assets details are as follows:

12
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N.D. Rubber Bobfipany Limited

Net value after de

Asset Type Proprietary of accumulate Obligation
depreciation (B
Fixed assets
1. Land and Improven NDR 148,204,] Credit Guarants
2. Machinery and Equ NDR 162,869,( Credizuarantee
Total 311,073,
Intangible property 1,059,2 No Obligation

N.D. Intrepart Company Limited (Subsidiary company)

Net value after de

Asset Type Proprietary of accumulate( Obligation
depreciation (B4
Fixed assets
1.Improvement NDI 200,64 Credit Guarants
2. Machinery and Equ NDI 8,427,4 No Obligation
Total 8,628,0
Intangible property 117,96

KR MALAYSSIA Bh{Eormerly knowang&ong Rubber Manufactory (Malaya) Sdn

(Subsidiary company)

Net value after de

Asset Type Proprietary of accumulate( Obligation
depreciation (B4
Fixed assets
1. Improvement FKRMM 13(7688§ Credit Guaranty
2. Machinerfegagbmer FKRMM 4,947,8 No Obligation
Total 135,713,
Intangible property 90,964,
13
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N.D. Green Rlangidnynited (Subsidiary company)

Net value after de
Asset Type Proprietary of accumulate Obligation
depreciation (B

Fixed assets
1. Improvement - -
2. Machinery and Equ NDGP 4341116 No Obligation
Total 43,411,]1

Intangible property -

Xtronic Conmlpamnted (Subsidiary company)

Net value diteucti
Asset Type Proprietary of accumulate( Obligation
depreciation (B4

Fixed assets
1. Improvement - -

2. Machinery and Eqgy Xtronic 9,8 D44 No Obligation
Total 98,754,

Intangible property -
'RemaMachine uimdtallation

1.3 Shareholding Structure of the Company Group
1.3.1 Shareholding Structure as of 314December 202
NDR started the business of manufacturing motorcycle taesyointthe Bankraterani &4

a Subsidiary was &estaNd)i shedendlade i
manufacturing rubber parts for automotive use. Currently NDR holds 91.77% of the

Subsequently, in 2018, NDR acquirE&® aAbha%B18BId. NELgcdtmerly kndvwam@s
Keong Rubber Manufactory (Malay&Fiina Biiaioomotorcycle tire dealer in Malaysia.

In 2021, NDR has invested in ETRAN (Thailand) Company Limited, a manuf
electriootorcycle in Thailand, where NDR holdp 8%5italf éimel psiconsidered as assoc

14
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company of the Cdimpa@oynpany has complet& Sh&gsarRAM's registered capital, with &
value 5fQ000baht, during the fourth 2uarZEMeishareholders have been notified thro
information disclosed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand's website.
(Refehttps://www.set.or.th/th/raaedkédbeessdetails?1d=9262180)&symbol=NDR

After that, in 2022, the Company has a concept of installing soldy.pareisetn&lafet e
Company Limited to generate electricity form solar energy in which NDR holds 99.3!
it icompletédnstaltbd solar rooftop angestartdd electriciyhinagthmarter of 2023.

In 2024, the company plans to invest in the electronics business due to the current gl
Is considered groigth potential market. Furthermore, the company's strong partnerst
Berhad (EG) will suplpive #relcompany's sustainéhéejovestExtronic Company Limitec
been established to conduct business in the electronics industry, acting as a Test
devices. The establishment of this subsidianateijylie pagarfdtmisiness and strengthe
company in the future.

V, 7>

RUBBER ¥

99.319 l 00.00% l

»
ATD

= PARTS

GIREEN Xtronic Co.,Ltd
PLANET

100% l 91.77%

Information of the Company and its subsidiaries name, location tefdygachefincenbgre of
andhe amount afipaidares will be listed in Section 5, General Information and Other S

1.3.2 Relationship with the Business Group of Major Shareholders
T he Co msharehglddisindustjies B&@ah listed company in the Bursa Malg
Securities Berhad and is not a connected person to the Company in pursuant to the

15
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https://www.set.or.th/th/market/news-and-alert/newsdetails?id=92621801&symbol=NDR

Supervisory Board TorJor 21/2551 Re: Rules for Connected Transactions amended «
(as amended) and the Notification of the Board of Governors of SET Re: Disclosure
of Listed Companies Concamenteth@&r@nsactions B.E. 2546 (2003) dated on 19 Nove
(2003) (as anmegedates businesses that gain revenue from investing in and providir
electronic incusdrifoldidg® of NDRS3® s shares.

Consi stent CR§B)c,oda Mallnay sBihadn j(uri sti c
custodian, operating a financial service busiagss and holtingRe3dsecta bf LRSBS
own FKRMM, which the Company acquired
Chaiyasit Samrittivanicha and the Sami
35.88.The group has many types of business which will have some connected t
transaction. The details are shown in the Connection Transaction section.

Il n this regard, the Company?3s core bu:
operations of major shareholders.

1.3.3 Major Shareholders
1.33()The Company?3 s 2I1NbvemzefdtZdoockiobirdqpie hol der s

Name of the sharehold As dtiNovemBéa,
No. (Share) Percentag
Samrittivanicha Group
Mrs. Nittaya Samrittivaniche 1110214 2432
Mr. Chaiyasit Samrittivanich 500@0¢ 10.9
Ms.Qraph&amrittivanicha 2,862,3 0.63
Samrittivanicha Grouy 16149,6] 35.8
10 @her Magirareholders
EG Industries Berhad 111,000;¢ 24.0
Thai NVDR Company Limitg 88,418,4 19.3
Ms. Naiyana Fuangfukitpisa 101220 222
MsRadagphichayaphanit 3,795,9 0.8
Mr. Pawawit Klinpratoom 3,035,0 066
Mr. Patipol Prawangsuk 2,400,0 0.53
MsSusaniaiMetan 2,092,2 0.4¢
16
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Mrs. Kesuree Suntorn 188987 0.4
Mr. Chakorn Asavasin L& A0 0.8]
Mr. Karn Suriyasasin 1,8Q00C 0.4¢
Total 22@R6B27 49.5

Other minority shareholde 66,659, 14.5
Total 459563( 100.0

RemakamrittivanichaNeEjoushareholders has influence to regulated policy, management or even

significantly.

1.3.3 (2) Relationship with the major shareholders

N/A

1.3.3 (3) Number of registered capitad aafifsid
As of 31 Decemdyeh @dmpany hadppqaqudad B9 63Baht, divided B0 6,30
ordinary shares and 0 preferred shares, at par value of 1 Baht.

1.3.3 @her Securities

The 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders heldetim@@dnardarad2hdhe

approved the

details as follows:

i ssuance

of

waWR)aThe s

Warrant Name

Warrant to purchase newly issued ordinary,
Rubber Public Company Limited/R)ab2ifgDI
offered to the existing shareholders of the (

Issued Number

Not exceeding 86,722,878 units

Allocation and Offering | :

Allocated and offered to the existing sharehc
Company in the ratio of 4 exsstargotdihargit ¢
warrant, with no offering price.

Offer Price

0.00 Baht per unit

Term of the Warrants

2 Years commencing from the issue date

17
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Exercise Price . | 3.50 Baht per share (Subjected to change a(
conditiorafjustment of rights.)

Exercise Ratio . | 1 Unit of warrant is entitled to purchase 1 0
exercise ratio is subject to change in accort
specified condition in the adjustment of righ
The First Exercise Date| : | First Time: 1 December 2022

Exercise Date Second Timk June 2023

Third Time 1 December 2023

Last Time: At the expiration date of the wal
Objectives of the issuan : | To support its existing business and fueher
warrants business focusing on business related to el
used as working capital to enhance the ligt
Company.

Secondary Market of thq : | Market for Alternative Investment (mai)

As of 31 Decemfyenez@2vereunit6 of exercised warrants, and the remaining numbe
shares reserved for conversion was 86,722,762 shares. These warrants expired

1.3.3 (5) Dividend Payment Policy
The Company declared a policy to pay digioinof hlodes=t fhraifit after the deduction
corporate income tax and | egal maeser
changeable depends on future investment plan, liquidity, necessity anthether apr
Bardd rect or3s resolution approved to |
meeting except the dividend during the period which the board of director has the
period and report to sharehgldatheeekt meeting.

Tle Company and subsidiary have defined ddaggrahpaitcia0%thef the net profit afte
deduction of the corporate income tax anddegalpesanve forshef i nanci al
Is any subsidiary company shall declared a policy to pay dividend no less than 10(
deduction of the corporate 1|1 ncwewe t a
subsidiary and/or associated company may defined to pay dividen®legatiyan the
have to spend net profit btonggrgniousiness operations.

Dividend payment rate for the performance in the past 3 years

18
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Details 2021 2022 2023 2024

Net Profit Ratio (Baht/Share) 0.13 (0.07) - 0.021

Dividend Payment Ratio (Baht/§ 0.03 0.02 - 0.05

- Dividend PayméBaliSioare) 0.03 0.02 - -

- Dividend of the interim p - - - 0.05
(Baht/Share)

** The dividend payméregnraid@2uncertain because it must be apgxoued! fyeher@i0Rleeting of
Shareholde?8 ApaD2

19
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2. RISK MANAGEMENT

2.1 Risk Management Plan and Policy

The Board of Directors and Executives of NDR realize the importance of corporate ri
of good corporate governance and it?3s
goals and drive the orgagipatisastaifiablZ.ompany has appiskddahagement Working
Group act as Risk Management Committee responsibility to define the risk appetite
risk and seeking the prevention and réqiexeosiVamaiggiee and Audit Gonewvigiee
every quarter as define by risk management policy as follow:

Risk Management Policy

1) The Company shall operate under acceptable risk so as the company can drive a

2) Al | empl oyees shall comply with adhe
the corporate and operational levels as stipulated by the Executive Committee, |
Control System

3) Risk significantly and impact to companyrobjeie &s rialisize
- ldentify risks in a timely manner.

- Assess consequence and affected of such event occur.
- Manage risk accordingly.
- Monitoring to ensure that risks are handled appropriately.

4) The Company has put in place a risk assessment process that takes into conside
factors that may hinder the Company from achieving its objectives, by covering k
operatigfinhngidw and regulation, sysenabikstal climate change

5) The Company has resolved that impact and likelihood of identified risks are asse
mitigation strategies and plans are in place to manage risks and contain them v
appetite level.

Responsibility
1) The Boamicéct&esponsible to overall company risk management

2) Audit Commiltbeensure the company has effective risk management system incluc
accordingly.

3) Risk Management Worlaots @soapisk managementhe®anatideVanager of Human
Resources is responsible for the highest responsibility.

20
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Establish risk management policy and review periodically.

Assess the likelihood and consequences occur.

Review risk and guidelines for risk management as stated as well as giving su
Report risk found to the audit committee.

Conduct risk management committee at least quarterly.

4) Internal AuB&smponsible for reviewing the effectiveness of risk management contre
improvement.

5) Management and enRpsbyielesitification ability and giving appropriate risk manage
and propose to the Board of Director or supervisor

Risk Management for tie year 202

For the yeat P02 Risk Manayeonkinty Ghmlg a totd raketings and found that there a

important risk as follows:

1.The fire risk from installing solar panels on factory roofs, the Compatiyemay enc
installation of solar energy panels that producacelactulcty dafieedetszioration from
use, which may cause fires in the area

Risk Managefenchasing drones for regular temperature monitoring flights

Resulthe Engineering Department has procured drones for temperature monito
regular monthly surveys of all factory building solar panels at the end of eact
surveys, the average total heat measurefidiegsebst@edsius, which is within t
standard range and does not pose a risk of fik @emgreisk Cetsts)d\ige will contin
to monitor the heat levels of the solar panels regularly. If any panedaxhibits a
level than others, we will promptly investigate and take corrective action

2.The climate change risk may incur a change of government policies by preparing the Clim
to support Thailand in achieving @soggralesihoetse gas (GHG)Z2 @i 8risony the change
of government policiesanrgoasethat impose fees or carbon taxes on products that emit ¢
the atmosptizeeCompany may encounter ttiewafisotsdasgrheme (ET Sjaalnoiax
could be an increase of cost

Risk Management:

-Th&ustainability Development Working Group conducts the Carbon Footprint
assess the amount of greenhouse gas emission

-looks for ways to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

-looks for way to reduce coal use

21
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Result:

- Theompany regularly records data from each department to prepare an anr
footprint assessment.

-Bio Charcoal Project to reduce coal use

22 Ri sk Factors for the Company?

Risk from market competition and new entrepreneur

There are a lot of existing entrepreneurs in manufacturing of motorcycle tires and tuk
intense competition especially in pricing. A key factor to success in manufacturing of
business is effectmamagement and product quality standard, standard delivery on t
quantities in accordance with customer requirements and developing internatione
Company gives importance to its employees, an imgsstaperasonrd®y ioffrrang reasone
compensation and providing regular training to enhance their knowledge, capabili
development.

Risk from reliance on a mBumpigalibrain)

The Compmiogures natwsber from one major supplier with high volume enables the C«
a competitive price and rest assured of natural rubber supply in shortfall situation.

Nevertheless, the Company is in the process of searching for new suppliers who car
quality that meets the specified standards at a reasonable price to be alternative a
placing purchase ordafswdlicampare daily selling prices quoted by at least two supp
Procurement decision is made based on factors such as nature of products, prices, |

Risk from the volatility of raw material prices

The tire industry is one of the industries affected by oil prices because the raw mate
linked to the petroleum and petrochemical industries. If the price of crude oil in the
or down, it wilimelelprice of raw materials increasing or decreasing as well. In additic
rubber and synthetic rubber in the country will refer to the selling price in the world
US dollar, so the excharg8ahiteagfinst the US dollar. As a result, it also influences tt
rubber and synthetic rubber in the country.
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In 2@2the price of natural rubber, which is the main raw material of tires, 8n average
due tbe global economic slowdown, the effects of the El Nifilo phenomenon, and the
prices in the global market, driven by increased demand for oilthtugimidneusadiingng
price in the tire industry group can adjust the price according to the raw material pric
cannot be done immediatelypdtiadldbkiena according to the competitive mechanism |

The Company has a policy to support fluctuations in raw material prices, the movern
the country and abroad is closely assessed. The direction of the price trend is anal
ordering including te@asseéss of t he Company?®s raw mat
importing raw materials from abroad in order for the Company to able to manage re
maximum efficiency.

Investment Risk

The Company still focuses on developing opportunities to expand into other busin
international, in order to grow the organization continuously in the long term. The st
might cause risk of retunmeon wiviebt may not meet the target under economic conditio
changes in laws or regulations of the investment country.

In this regard, the Company has a policy to invest in subsidiaries to operate supj
Company?®s |line of busines4is Bhd Coampeaanj
value in subsidi8ty564 B3At. In addition, the Company has appointed executives to s
and executives in subsidiaries to participate in the administration closely and forr
policies and strategies including monitoring shbsgetatersiod that it has implementec
policies set by the Company and reports the progress of the operation every quarter

Emerging Risk
- Emerging sk t hat motorcycle manufacturer

From economic conditions and surveys of changing rider behavior, it was found th
switch to ms@e new models entering into the market to use TL tires resulting in tt
motorcycle inner tubes. Therefore, thetl@ExEory Sakegrie find new markets in unde
countries and continue to use more t
pushing more sales of TL tires to increase market share,nmextidimthsyspeodimanin
process of TT tires and tube production processes.
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Financial Risk

- Risk from interest rate fluctuations
The Company may be exposed to interest rate increases which impact on financi
and business performance. The Company currently has ateorkengddapgal both ir
The Company has a risk managemeingpaicgusyof financial instruments to manag
rate to be suitable for the nature of the business.

- Risk from foreign exchange rate
The Company has costs of purchasing some raw materials from overseas supplie
sales revenue in foreign currencies. Forward contracts will be executed in full am
banksIn addition, the Company have foreign customers, therefore, a foreign curr
opened to receive payment for goods and used to pay for raw materials that mus
in order hedge against foreign exchange risk that could affect its performance.

- Company Liquidity Risk

As company has continuously expanded its investment both extending the existir
the production process to be an automation system, working capital is considerec
might impact company liquidity. mipeumyhcaheeDoed on management planning foc
investment in the way of varies financial instruments in raising funds from sharel
working capital management in effective operations. Simultaneoudyatth@ésCompa
business with full responsibility to creditors and financial institutions throughout th
loan agreement. From this reliability factor, financial institution allocated credit |
business expaosioorking capital.

Operational Risk
- Risk from delay in collection of payments or debts from customers

The Company has a policy to distribute products by granting credit terms to custol
be exposed from risk involved with customer payment for goods and services or
The Compassigned Chief Financial Officer together with General Matager of S
consider and approve a credit line and credit term for new customers and review
followp and collection and decide on legal action accordingly. In addition, the Fir
assigned to expedite-tipedisiotue debtors, consider stopping the sale when the de
to pay the debt according to the agreement, as well as consider litigation proceed
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Risk from Information Technology

Due to the Company operations mainly rely on information technology system for
support business strategies, and presently Cyber Threat is continuously develops
IS increasing in every organizaompactimgythe credibility, the confidence of custc
investors or may impact the business strategy. Thus, the Company has taken intc
find management measures to prevent such risks. Safetynptbcy temtmmolaiyn o
systems and guidelines for the use of computers and the internet correctly and s
program to monitor behavior and manage threats that attack. Regularly test an
system as well as arplaimtp respond to threats in the event of an attack and regt
which covering access control, confidentiality within the organization, protect the |
build confidence that information systemssseoatidyityrdyusieating a backup syste
can restore data quickly and accurately.

Safety, Health and Environment Risks

The Company is aware of safety, health and environment from operation in busi
loss, injury, and illness which will affect disruption and business continuity inclt
community society and environnresk stielc@dehts from transportation, risks from f
working at height. The Catefmnyrtpaisielines and operational standards to manag
safety, health and environment as follows:

| To determinenandiatiee safety, health and environeecdyralgsy émployee to reali:

the i mportance of wor king under t
environments tihheidadlsafety, occupational health and working environment s
el iminatedyp.

| Established Occupational Safety, Health and Environment Committee to mane
care of operating office in each area to prepare and respond to emergies.

[ Organizing activities to promote health, good and safe environment in the worl

[ The Company has waste management system to prevent the impacts on enviro
for example, by waste segregation till the disposal of waste by reliable agency,
grease and also wastewater analysictoy.external inspe

[ Communicating and providing preventive information to all employees about
equipment to preent the spread of disease, report of risk areas and temperature
before entering the work area.
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I Follow up on risk management results through various risk indicators and repo
Meeting and the Audit Committee for acknowledgement.

| Organize¢dmai ning program ~JSA Find and
formulate preventive measures and correct the causes that may cause accide
work.

Social Risk

Social and Community Risks

The Company realizes the importance of taking care ofaldgiakipg oftstakeboiter
social and community risks such as human rights, social and ethiver@fonental. |
assigned the General Manager of Human Resource and Administration Depar
supervise and take any relatednadfiertte organization to comply with the policy
community and environmental responsibility as well as complying with the bus
Compamypgorts and promotes the development and continuous implementation o
policy, cultivate a good consciousness in conducting business with social res
transparent, have an ethical practice. Carrgimgg aititegel ndegphnd regulations re
to the Company?®s business operations
property or copyright together in against all forms of tivapitohunGnéghis;ity
practices, promote respect for rights and frekstymsritationgmohrdes the freedom tc
opinions without interference. Provie a communicationnobas ioé|stak eieloiecs ol
a channel for receiving various complaints to the Company. There is policy to pr
the organization.

Risk of Human Rights Violations in the Supply Chain

Risk of Human Rights Violations in thaySceyse Cbasequences, for example, res
collaborative processes not going according to the plan, reputational damage in
Company may lose group of partners or important customers, etcal his&rdiee to mit
Company has established a Code of Conduct for executives, employees, busine:
to strictly adhere to and hayeradiaiftstycase of violates actidmsrdoaredchannels
through which such persons can fieacihtiolajritee. Company has aldeezstataished
Dat&rotectiatid®o comphith the lmw2@2the Company has not received any complair
human rights violations in the supply chain.
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Compliance Risk

The risk which is impacted from changes in relevant laws, and regulations from |
governments in which the Company invests. Changes in regulations and policies
not be able to comply with the changeshahredftecpkihe reputation and image, finat
operational impact, competitiveness and investment. The Company has impler
measures by monitoring changes in laws, regulations and policies to kaep up witl
to respond to changes in order to analyze afpremisa SBaveh@srporate Governe
Policy and Code of Conduct which is communicated to all employees to know &
monitored through the Human Resources Department and Risk Management Con
database systeima@king changes so that all units can operate in accordance with t
and regulations.
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3. Driving Business for Sustainability

3.1 Sustainability Management Policies and Goals

The Company conducts sustainable business by balancing a stable society and &
growing the business. Corporate soci
guidelines for developing and esdipemsiptityato all stakeholders for sustainable mutu
l i ne with the SDgGs)t awhmiacbl ec dDweevred otphme nd ¢
order to ensure a balanced and consistent operation, theSCstdipiaDe\egippimteat th
ManagemEB). The committee helps enable sustainable development operati
environmentally and balances business growth to create a clear and consistent polic
governance as the most important foundation. @&heoCevglapysasaisthility throughot
value chain and support stakeholders to grow sustainably along with the Company.

Environmental f Operate the business with consideration to m
impacts and use resources efficiently.

1 Promote the creation of business innov
environmentally friendly.

Social  Commit to human resource development and
principles of hugats, labor rights, safety al
including creating a good working environr
sustainability.

T Promote and support
towards communities, society, environment a

Governance 1 Operate the business in accordance with the

corporate governance for listed companies (C
1 Continuously promote operational developn
organi zation3s value
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3.2 Managing Impacts on StakelBulderssis Wedue Chain
3.2.1 Business ValueAthAisis

N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited conducts business with responsibility accordir
corporate governance and take into account the social and environmental impact:
sustainable development. Tiserct@msdthto the stakeholders of the Company in ord
drive and promote sustainable business cooperation. The Company takes into acc
stakeholders in its business operations from upstrearnh#b vevanstoesnmiitteefkectreatir
value of products and services in order to meet the expectattfmsSo$talhabalikghol
Development Working Group has reviewed the business's value chain by analyzing
the organization's value of "proud to be Intrend," as follows:

Maketing Researchf] Raw Matelj Production . After Sale
Trend sea : , SEES Delivery of G ,
Communicg Developmg Procuremd Inspection Services

Monitor cur| Analyze cui Create prod Sourcing ra| Production | Setting Efficient Service for
trendson | trending | identity, materials fr( clean energ product pri{ delivery | replacemen
social medi situations tq develop ney sources tha and moderr| to suit prod  planning t{ products
and define | develop | innovations| paye peen | technology | quality fairl] ~ deliver go{ caused by
targgt market!ng and def_'ne‘ certified for| focusing on and increas quickly an| errors in the
audiences. | strategies g properties & . . .

. quality syst¢ use of sales chan| on/time ar| production

disclose thg sources of 1 i .

. and have esources | tg diversify| can reduc| process
through onl| materials T - ' ]
media gualification efficiency al create transporta including th
channels. as specified with the zerl communicg energy. | provision of

the Compar waste policy channels fc experts to
by giving | including | customers provide adv
priority to | quality cheq easily acce on the prod
partners wh according tc and custom
conduct specified satisfaction
business ar| standards t assessmen
care of ESC get product

that méed

needs of

customers.
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3.2

The Compaayified in the 1ISO9001:2015 and IATF16949:2016 quality managemer
strengthen reliability of its operations from ordering, receiving, .abdsti@nensngatokbbe c
assured that they will receive quality products and is accurate and complete accordin
In addition, the Company has improved and developed testing laboratories by adkc
machines, capable of performing tests quickly and pravinkeyy eftatsveuresoiisnitment
to delivering products that can fulfill consumer demands with quality that meets inter

Stakeholders Analysis in the Business Value Chain

The Company always engages with intstaiedranideexteymahintain good working relati
This includes creating an wunderstandi
business benefit exp&ctandhe assessment of the expectations of each stakeholders
there is a level of impact and influence on the Company at different levels. The
shareholders, customers and employees.

This stakeholder engagement is part of our business ethics and commitment to achie
The Compargnabztte stakeholderbusitiess valueandadivided into stakeholders within
outside the orgaag &hibows:

Stakeholden St ak e hol der jResporisghe Expecti@iakarhol(
Stakeholders within the organization

Shareholder - Higher stock price, return, divi( - Create a good profitable performar]
(Investor, Shargh - Equitable treatment of sharehq - Disclosurecarinpany information th

- Growing business performanc¢ SET®*s websi te an
- Provide news to the media and
important news through the SET cor

Employee - Income, compensation and wg - Compensation and welfare allocatic
(People who are| - safety at work - Appropriate and fair performance ev
directly employe( - Training and development - Improve work environment to be st

the Company / P| - Affiliation with the organization - Provide training to development
who are employe - Growth business performance| employees.

theCompany thro - Organize activities that promote part
relationships between the sugemizaa
and employees at all levels.

an outsource cor
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Stakeholder

St akehol der

i Respornisghe ExpectiG@takairholg

Stakeholders outside the organization

Consumer
(Customer who b
and who use pro
and servjces

- Want to receive quality produ
the needs, complete quantity &

- Gé good servicemaed the spe
standards.

Reasonable price and compe
market.

Instructions for using the produ
Product warranty

Products/Services that can cre;i
growth.

- Deliver products and services with q{

-Controlling production and delivery
and meet customer requirements.

-Organized marketing activities to
volume to customers/dealers.

- Staff training to serve customers.

- Invent new products that meet the n

- Increase communication channels
groups of customers.

- Policy for replacement products w
manufacturing errors.

Partner
(Manufacturers,
suppliers, servicg
providers of the
Company?
processes.

- Purchasing and procurement
transparent and in complian
contract.

- Pay for goods/services on time

- Payment of goods within specified

- Selection of dealers according to t
policy that is transparent and fair.

Community / Soc
(Those who are
affected both pog
and negatively fr
operation and us
produgt.

-The Company?3s
impact on the community.

- No pollution is released into the

- Community members are saf
living.

- Get help soldtions in the comn

- Set up a team to take care of ang
relationship with the community.

- Operate the business by ma
environment in accordance with th
not affect the community.

- Corporate in various activities as ap

Government Age
(Those who super
issue rules, consid
allowing any relate
business opeyatio

- Follow the rules, legal regu
policies.

- Facilitate communication and ¢
government agencies.

- Ethics artdansparency
operations.

in by

- Strictly comply with the laws relat
operations.

- Comply and engage with governn
and activities as appropriate.

Competitor
(Manufacturer an
distributors of the
prodyct

- Fair and transparent trade con

- Determine strategies according to
in good faith and do not misrepres
discredit competitors.
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3.2.3 Sustainabdetification

According to the analysis of the business value chain above, the Company found im
between the Company and both internal and external stakeholders in each value cf
social and environmental gifiodogiens a

Human Capital Development

Privacy Protection

3.2.4 Materiality Analysis

The Company manages its sustainability issues by collecting and prioritizing them i
operations and considering issues arising from cuarens aad tergialrisls t h a-
businesdasthis regard, the Company uses the process of engaging with stakeholde
data and opinions to be analyzed before applying all the results to prioritize susta
manage various issues can respotakappldgriateds. Process of materiality asses:
prioritization are starting from analyze sustainability issues along the value chain, ar
to the stakeholders, analyuretitevath the enterprise risk management and assess
sustainability issues with respect to importance to the Gelngfamyaarapptakeldobyetise
Executive Committee M&&hdgWdteriality assesspramitization is as follows:
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Materiality Matrix

3.3 Sustainability Management in Environmental Dimensions
3.3.1 Environmental Policies and Practices

The Company focuses on the use of resources that may affecEnheosmentahent.
Management Pdalyais part of business operations which must be subject to reg
environmental regulations. It alsootakethattenvironmental conservation is the respo
executives and employees to cooperate in the implementation to achieve the objecti
on minimizing its environmental impact by implementing aratedeveiompimgersial ap
organi zation?®s energy management syst

The Compesyestablished an Environmental Management Working Group to plan, st
environmental performance. In addititag éhpr@entgarcontrol and reduce the amount
consumption and resource such as electric, water, paper and other campaign throu
bannersmnail, and other activities for employees to participate dizd therakenaployees
use of energy, reduce unnecessary use of water arahjodét@ppeEmoidsetiooge of dout
sided paperanuires electronic storage of documents to reduce the use of paper in tr
Furthermore, the Comp@ucinaatiti@afetynd Environmental Policy focusing on risk mar
to prevent the loss in various forms as an accident, force of majeure arising from
encourage personnel and contractors to understand their duties dad umgaie to stc
conditions and can protect the environment pvbjodrgnalycaifectuiiey, including respond
to customer needs in terms of safety, occupational health and environment.
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Environmental Sustainability Goal

SDGs

13 foor A ot

co fl &

d | R

Project | Reduce GHG enig{ Reduce water Reduce Reduce th¢ Reduce w;

4 3092 0.3 0 consumption electricity = occurrence by circular

consumptic waste in th economy
production (make trol
process  tire)

Target |- The amouni The volume o Electricity The amour The amou
compare GHG emiss water usage f consumptic waste in  waste
to thiast decreased | the treatment decreased production reduces by
year 1,700 tonCq process increi 106 process 700 grams
eq by 16.64% reduced by per tire
compared tot 2%
use of tap war

3.3.2 Environmental Performance

Management to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

Th&€ompany places importance on management to reduce greenhouse gas probler
Company3s activities with the highest
t he Company?3 s v ethal to makes energy frdmeothef soorpes ang ch
Company3s car to electric car.

InN282 t he Company?3s dil&;88donCeq gmdendinedt emissians of
14699 0nCeq, totaling&T onCel whiah treased froBB3058AonCeRa consultant

from Energy Research and Development Institute Nakornping, Chiang Mai Unive
VGREEN KU CvYGRHEEN
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Greenhouse gas emig 02 03 02
Dire@&HG emissions 15,332 togC({ 15,933 tomC( 168840nCO
Energy Indirect GHG emiy  3,330nCe 2,766nCO 25260nCO
Other Indirect GHG emiss  12,108nC® 11,313nCO 121730nCO

Water Management

The Company has efficient wastewater management with treated effluent by pun
production process and from the staff
and through the chemical pit peocatsdyechfikcculation reaction (Reaction Tank and
Tank). After that, it will be released through a pond for settling (Sedimentation Tan
from water. The water will flow into the aeratioygEmintthilvitadeaiand ozleased to the
sump to make the water clearer (Clarifier Tank) and forwarded to the reservoir agai
the last step before releasing water to the pool to reserve raw waipplipsiistdrar use
There is effluent that has @@énotrdagebtal amount of efiitubatreused in the productic
process and within the company. In 2024, the company reduced raw water usage
representing aaasy of 893,265 baht compared to producing tap water for use. Thi
reduction of 98.2% compared to the previous year

Energy Management

The Company has efficient energy management by instadtimgrassefia®fdgttapesystem
meteiide solar panel takes the energy from the sun and converts it to the Direct Cur
that, it will send power to inverter system to convert DC power to Alternating Currer
control cabinet with protectmicatewct to the electrical system of the Provincial Elec
The Company uses the electricity generaimd dfdhmetbolsstdattop in the production [
In addition, theffloi@ncy air compressor was replanew anddosiplistEad for the most
efficient energy prdduz@piihhe Comgamyreduce the use of electricity bylameching to

in the amoud\{766,81&®Bandble to save electricity cost HviboBaldin increase of
54.82% compared to the previous year. This is due to the commencement of electricit
phase of the 1.89 MW solar system, supplied by a subsidiary that produces and sells

Management to reduce waste in the production process
The Company encourages all personnel to participate in waste management both
overview of the organization and specific activities of each department, for example:
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1 Waste Reduce Project for a Better SUstainmabikyt Wies organized in the Tire (
Department amdlikeCuring Depafitheeabjective is to motivateuemigisides to
benefits of waste reductions and raise awareness of the potential impact on
econontne project resulted in the Company reducing production costs and als
back to employees in the form of rewards as well. In additiameaisedinoont of
1.8% t@.0% compared to the3/8dmi202s due to the trial of new suppliers for sor
materials during thesddbid quarters, aimed at managing costs. However, the
raw material batches was below the company's standards, leading to increas
has taken corrective actions to ensure that product qualifgruamtams tsigvistanc
continuing to explore new suppliers. The company will continue with this projec
to support it in achieving its objectives and goals, which include reducing wa
process to lower prodsistiand reflect benefits back to employees in the form of

An innovative project to reduce waste using the circular economy

1 Project for the production of trolley tires for -canigipgogeeeretises waste from t
production process (Circular Economy) to produce trolley tires for internal u
amount of waste, reduces greenhouse gas emissions, and helps reduce cost
result of this project implementation, the Coethaeythasamolentoof waste that ha
be sent for disposal by an external agency by 700 grams/tire and was able to ri
by 37,400 Baht/month or reduce the cost of buying trolley tire of 1,235 Bah
Company wilhoenthe project.

Waste Management from the Production Process
The Company has a systematic management of
waste from the production process in accordance
with the principles of 3Rs (Redus
Recycle), with an efficient separatic
methods of disposal according to “~ 0 i
waste. The waste sespmsaprovider | K2 R WME
be a person who has been apprc ‘
Department of Industrial Works to
waste from the Company will be disj
right way with minimal impact on the environment.

Prepa
and

il
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In 2@2the Companyispssedwaiste generated from thdarptbdonciiadd 47,984 or
about47.98Tetric Tons divided into waste or hazardous mdtei@asdne treeghalitoof
10.0%6 and Amrardous waste or unused materidl32 tinsn8@adoof the total amount
of waste disposed.

3.4 Community Sustainable Development
3.4.1 Social Policies and Practices

The Company conducts its business in accordance with the principles of corporate gc
and accountability. It aims to concurrently improve its business and maintain a balal
environmental awarenessh ®@ne 6fo mpany 3 s pl edges i s t ¢
sustainably, grows steadily and gains public recognition based on its code of ethics
The Company also strives for healingheldeosy¢évany affects of its operations may havi
all stakeholders are always taken into account.

Inthis regatide Company has established a social responsibility policy which is divide
or environmental activities which are part of normgbimcsisgsamapsoaimreandrenvironme
activities that are outside siheesnogldratioqsr¢akef)his includes respecting human righ
bringing Thai Labor Stérad&dgporate Social Respons2bigy diTibiedddiistry of Labor co
into pracaoel upholding the Universal DeclaratisraatifuendnifeiNations Guiding Prir
on Busi ness afh CdinpanpaemphBRsizegsion |abor practics@GRdsrqsy
rights with fairness, equaldis@mdimation both in terms of employment, compensati
training and development and is part of the achievement @nhe &alsté8@DIs) Detied
country and the world.

Social Sustainability Goal

SDGs

QUALITY
EDUCATION

v

Project NDBCares Whur JSAearch Elimir  Training to Goi  As p€ébmpany
Travelling Occupational Ha Policy
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Indicator Number of Shift supervisors Average training Employment ra
institutes/Numbe above are trainer ofemployees per disabled persor

participates who m  can find accide 100 employee
reduce accident prevention meas

Target TrainiQy Institute: 100% of Shift 8Hours/Person/® 1DisaluiPerson

Participabé®) supervisors and i 100 Employee

persons/Institut attend training

3.4.2 Social Performance

3.4.2 @mployee and Labor
The Company adheres to the principles of human Hgimarstipiglatesy imdloeling
employment to care for employees and personnel in order for all employees and pe
connected to the same family as the ordathiraGompamy202s the following key em,
operations:

Employment
As of 31 Decemédi7 202ployees classified by type of emptoyment as follows

T e Number of Empl(
Male Female Handicappeg
Full Time Employ 168 B 1
Daily Employee 1% b 4
Tot al 9 13 5

Employee Resignation

e Number of Empl ¢
202 203 202
Dismissal 0 0 0
120 87 88
Resignation Male | Femal¢ Male | Femal¢{ Male| Fema
8 4 36 69 29 69 19
Retirement 0 1 2
Tot al 120 87 88
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Employee Engagement Assessment Results

The company conducted an employee engagement assessment for all employees. |
the average scores from the highest and lowest ratbd asagsmddot pensomrik|
development purposes.

Staff Training

In 2@2the Company organizes training courses for employees to increase their skKills
employees toddbongrsesich dsansformation in the,dgkat@gAccreditation Prggram (D£
Business Combinations and Advanced Operational ConsqlRtatesh&irzatcid? iStattine!
Act: PDPA for the automqtinetdyeltedti@rganizational Happiness Créébokfiac&lappy
Implementaiewly Updated Labor Prot€dtonphéimsal Safety and Health Committe
Commiti€eane Operators, Crane Signalers, anétdpieimd iridipey & lectietcdime
average number of hours of training or knowledge developrébatiecpeitipsriure pgyloy
year.

Safety, Occupéteaiind Environment
In 2@2the Company continually improves and optimizes safety operations to reduce

death and take care of the quality of life of employees appropdatiynushiengGompan
coursés employees to prevent accidents sadétyasramargyangdsenvironmental protectio
as forklift drividgghfiirey aexchcuation, training on the use of protective equipment, e
employees realize safe busindssaoipiratiptise Company has organized a project to tre
to reduce accidents. Details as follows:

1 “JSA Search Eliminate Occupgiidrted plagactisvas orgainzed to provide knowled
analysis of work safety procedures. It is also a communication for supervisor
supervisor level up to the Manager level to be awditeedatige tsafehysaB@met is
employees at the leve of assistant shift supervisor or above to participate in t
able to analyze to find danagers in the work process of their own department.
are as follows:
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Implementation Steps Period
Study and compile related theories 2 Weeks
Prepare training materials 2 Weeks
Conduct training 2 Weeks
Prepare a workshop 1 Week
Evaluaterkhop 1 Week
Project summary 1 Week

From t he JBAeprtheElmenaté @ctupatipmal ldazardsc a B%enipleyeas o n «
at the level of assistant shift supervisor or above participateceire thil ¢ sinama 086 Yia
dangers in the work process. This led to the determination of the methods to prevent
the amount of 9 items.

Accident Statistics &ear 202

Type Accident Statistics #ear 202
Injury to leave work for | Injury to leave work fg Died
than 1 day than 1 day
Employe 2 6 0
Contract 0 0 0

The Company has measures to prevent such accidents by improving work processe
and communicate to employees to realize the importance of operating procedures
incident.

In addition, the Compaoyiddsamonitoring and measurement of theatviekah @ ecsisonm
yeaby measuring as the intensity of light at workplace, the dust, including the noise
working environment and arrange for a certificate of electrical sydte@@andaslectrica
found that the air quality standard, smell, sound, and light were within the normal ra
there were no cases of chemical spills from business operations

3.4.2 @ystomer
The company continuously develops products and services to meet customer sati
honesty, and ethics. In 2024, the company received customer satjsbatstomatsgs of
and 92% from domestic customers, with no customer complaints. Based on the custo
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the company analyzed the scores in various areas to further improve product qualit
sales service

3.4.2 Bdmmunity and Society
The&Company operates its business with responsibility to communities and society
environmental impact and avoid operations that may have a negative impact on the
around the establishmehthdre 202re no complaints from the community on social o
issues.

3.4.2 @ympany Activities and Social Projects

NDR has operated its business as a responsible member of Thai society for a long t
to business ethics, transparency and good corporate governance, taking into accc
customers, shareholder, empl@leeshenG@@opany aims to raise and improve the qu:
people in society as a good foundation for building a sustdn2@kthenG@tnpag\sbeaety.
supported social activities as follows:

N.D. Rubber contributes to flood relief efforts
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Seminar activities for tBegtalirsgaptive Leadérship Skill

The Company has organizeda waipiizrAdaptive Lead@rshgegicbme to lecture
and give ideas for training in leadership development to increase the potential of en
duties.
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NDBCares of Your Travelling
This project was a voluntary of the empl

for organized to raise awareness of traffic rules on the road and increase the skill of ri
collaborating wittoAda. Co., Ltd. on behalf of Arkom Charoenyont Co., Ltd. organize both tl

training

www.ndrubber.com e 089-1315000

43
561 One Repott 202



Fire Training and Fire Escape Dirills

The Company considers the safety of employees as the main priority, therefore, b:
been provided and conducting fire drilsofpréveyene20ihd losses within the Company
Is conducted in the form of lectures on toenieiprofahce classification of fires anc
firefighting training including fire evacuation drills as well.

Annual Health-Qh&aR
The Company cares about the quality of hieadthdbtrengiggea) therefore, annual healtf
are arranged for employees in which all employees participated in the activities toge

mind.
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4. Management Discussion and Analysis of Operating R

4.1 Overall Business Operations

NDR would like to present the MD&A for the year4ntee @dt&issaailogrs202

Company3s Operation

Unit; Million Baht

: P 2023024 023024
Profit/Loss: (ihibn Baht 2022 | 223 2024 Diferd % | Differd %
SileRevenue 839.3 836.2 918.1 -3.02{ 0.369 81.8/ 9.79¢

Profit (Loss) from 1.33 0.40 1.59] -0.92{ 69.511 1.18] 291.15
Exchange rate

Income Tax Bend 4.82 3.93 0| +0.89] -18.55 -3.93 -100.00
Other income 5.60 2.50 3.85 3.1( 55.311 1.34} 53.67
Total Income 851.07 843.17 92351 -7.94{ 0.939 80.4{ 9.54¢

730.0 6929 7389 -37.04 5.089 4598 6.64¢
85.78| 82.19{ 80.01]
43.6 51.4 51.0] 7.8( 17.86f -0.36] -0.71¢

Cost of Goods S¢

Selling Expense

Consolida 5.139 6.109 5.53¢
Statemern Administration 91.2 89.7 97.0 -1.51 -1.669 7.39 8.23¢

Expenses 10.72] 10.64{ 10.51]
impairment for th 10.9 74.0 20.1| 63.14 577.99 5H3.97 -72.87

of investment 1.289 8.799 2.18¢
0.0( 0.0( 8.57 0| #DIV/| 8.52] #DIV/

Tax Expenses

0.009 0.00¢ 0.92¢
109.2 143.3 179.1 34.02 31.13f 35.86 25.02
12.84] 17.00f 19.40
24.7,  65.0 7.8§ 40.32 163.1 72.9( -112.07
-14.28)  2.229 1.549

Gross Profit

Net Prdfioss)
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_ i 2023024 2023023
Profit/Loss: itibn Baht | 2022 | 223 | 2024 | — .
Differe % Differen %
SileRevenue 629. 606.3 666.5 -23.18& -3.68¢ 60.17 9.92¢
Profit (Loss) fron]  1.34 0.4 1.49 -0.92) 69.51 1.08] 266.34
Exchange rate
Other income 2.5] 1.17 0.0¢ -1.40{ 55.54 -1.12{ -100.00
Total Income 654. 619.1 680.4] -35.3¢ -5.41¢ 61.27  9.90¢
603.4 556.14 593.7{ 47.64 -7.89¢ 37.58 6.76¢
Cost of Goods S¢
92.26] 89.83{ 87.27]
9.14 16.3| 158 7.17 78.55 0.4¢ -2.849
Selling Expenses
1.409 2.639 2.339
Separate
Expenses 6.369 6.999 7.229
impairment for th 12.0f 73.0f 14.8 61 508.33 58.14 -79.68
of investment 1.839 11.79{ 2.189
0.0( 0.0( 2.0¢ 0| #DIV/ 2.05{ #DIV/
Tax Expenses
0.009 0.009 235.82
25.7) 50.1] 727 24.45 95.14 22.58 45.02
Gross Profit
3.939 8.109 10.69
-12.0{ -69.6 4.71 57.60 478.44 74.41 -106.84
Net Profit (L
etProfit (Loss) | — i 11.25] 0.70¢
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Consolidated Statement

S00
.—
700 -v‘ =g==Total Revenue

—8— Cost of Goods Sold

600

2022 2023 2024

In the y@&24, the company's revenue increased by 81.85 million baht. This growth res
proportion o/higk product sales, along with the expansion of the company's market into in
company gained additibeharearkdapan and the United Kingdom. Furthermore, sales in Mal
due to the cessation of operations by a manufacturer in that market.
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Consolidated Statement

200,00

10000

L - -
il i 5 e
50,00 — — . Selling Expenses
—f—Acmin Expenses
0.00 —— Gross Profit
2022 2023 2024 —e— Net Profit (Loss)

50.00

100, O

For this fiscal year's performance, the company Te@5nadtioa rethpy oliespite recognizin
loss of 20.1 million baht from the sale of shares in ETRAN (Thailand) Company Limi

The company was able to maintain a higher gross profit margin, even though raw m:
an upward trend. This was achieved through a focus qmafel imay giroductps) bagipled
with controlling selling andivadsrpesisat at normal levels, resulting in an increase in n
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Assets and Liabilities

2565:2566 2566:2567
Differer % Differer %
Current Assets 381.9 394.3 5231 12.3] 3.249 128.7] 32.65
Fixed Assets 726.2 644.8 7015 81.3] -11.20{ 56.67 8.79¢
Total Assets 1,108.] 1,039.] 1,224 68.9] 6.22¢9 18544 17.84

Balance SheetMilion Bah] 2565 | 2566 | 2567

Consolidg™~  ent Liabilitied  213.2 205.d 213.71  7.2¢ 3.409 7.79] 3.78¢
Stateme
Longerm Liabilitie ~ 45.6| 80.4| 64.0] 34.78 76.12{ -16.39 20.38
Total Liabilities | 258.9] 2864 277.4 2750 10.62 8.6 -3.004
Retained Earnin{ 849.7 752. 946.9 96.47 -11.36 194.0{ 25.78
Current Assets 168.2 186.07 251.1% 17.85 10.61 65.08 34.98
Fixed Assets 869.7 772.8 8930 9695 -11.15( 1254 16.21
Totassets 1,037 958.4 1.149] 791 7.629 190.3] 19.85
Separate’~ oot Liabilitiel  173.6 171.6 18021  2.0] -1.16 856 4.99¢
Stateme

Lorierm Liabilitie 16.2 15.7 15.6f -0.49{ -3.04¢ 0.1] 0.68¢
Total Liabilities 189.9¢ 1874 1959 2,51 -1.32¢ 8.45 4.51¢
Retained Earning 848.0 7714 953.3 -76.58 9.03¢9 181.§ 23.58

The company's assets and shareholders' equity have increased, partly due to the ca
year, and there has been diadlitet®from using surplus cash flow to repay debts owe
Institutions.
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5. General Information and Other Significant Information

5.1 General Information

Company Name
Registration No.
Type of Business

Patdp Capital

Hea®ffice

Chairman of Audit
Committee

Invest@elations

N. D. Rubber Public Company Limited

0107557000179

Manufacturer and distributor of motorcycle tires and tubes, and distrib
car and motorcycle.

45@B963Baht

Divided i@B963@rdinary Shares, Par Value 1 Baht

12Mo@& Nongch@kanasnikom Road, Tambol Nongeiroon, Amphur B
Province 20220

Telephongt683160707 Fax: (+6830 4 7 3 4 8
Websitewww.ndrubber.co.th

Email: auditcom@ndrubber.co.th

(For complaints and report corruptimcolndiamcé¥arith the code of condu
and/or good corporte governance)
Telephof#€831607 kil 2ZEmaikatcharaporn.wk@ndrubber.co.th

Company Secretary Telephof&881607 &kl 1Emaivatcharaporn.wk@ndrubber.co.th

Reference

Securities Registra Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

Auditor

93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building
Ratchadapisek Road, Dintlilsteiaty Biridaeng District, Bangkok 10400

Telephone: (+6&2)000Rax: (+6629MD9

BDO Audit Coinipaitad
By Mr. Teerasak ChuasrisakulCPA0662dr

Mr. Khaisaeng Thiranulak C.P.A. No. 5428 or

Ms. Supachanya Thongpa€PAo. 50%r

Ms. Amornjid Baolorpet C.P.A. No. 10853 or

Mr. Rejeesh Balasubramarfantitor at Blafpasia
42th Floor Exchange Towd2 GRIROMING88 Sukhumvit Road, Klongtoey
Suldlistrict, Klongtoey District, Bangkok 10110
Telephone2(68®354vww.bod.th
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5.2 Other Significant Information
N.D. Rubber Public Compar¥siibsitdides as follows:

Subsidiaries
Company Name
Registration No.
Type of Business

Registered Capial
Head Office

Company Name
Registration No.
Type of Business
Registered Capital
Patdp Capital
Head Office

Company Name
Registration No.
Type of Business
Paidp Capital
Head Office

Company Name
Registration No.
Type of Business
Registered Capital
Head Office

N.D. Interparts Company Limited

0205547017955

Manufacturer and distributor of automotive parts and part for electrinic
rubber

61 @OOBahPaid in)full

129/2 NydNongcldlanasnikom Road, Tambol Nongeiroon,

Amphur Banbueng, Chonburi Province 20220

Telephongr6638) 16070Hax(+663B8)4 7 3 4 8

FKR MALA$8M Bhd.

19390100003\1011

Importer and distributors of motorcycle tires and tubes
30,000,088laysian Ringgit

20,000,008laysian Ringgit

No. 2A, Jalan Wawasan 3/Ku7, Sungai Kapar Indamal@ggla Klang, Selar
Telephof€03291 190Hax+6038291 8848

N.DGreen Pl&@mhpany Limited

0205565026979

Production and distribution of electricity generated from solar energy
16,000,@z0(Paid in)full

12Mo@, Nongchkanasnikom Road, Tambol Nondgardore AgnGhonbt
Province 20220

Telephongt6638) 16070Hax: (+6638)4 7 3 4 8

Xtron@ompany Limited

55567002333

To operate an electronic industry business targeting 5G business own
152000,000 Bdid in)full

196 Moo 10, 304 Industrial Park Srimahapot, Prachinburi 25140
(Registere@®¥ugun?
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5.3 Legal Dispute
As of 31 Decemdeh@ @ mpany does not have any legahdsaiinesafiedtritay
Company3s assets with aandmomisputestrelatedtg h e 1

environmental, social and corporate governance issues.
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THE CORPORATE GOVERN/
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6. The Corpd&eernance

6.1

The Board of Director and management emphasize on the good corporate gove
determined practice guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Office o
Commission. The Board of Directqus staivie tbdevedoi se t he | evel

to internationally comply and appropriate for the present business operation environ
the Company to have an efficient, transparent and fair meaageabdity as ot pstenara
raise value for the shareholders in long term under ethical operation framework with
and all stakehol ders which enhances t |

Overview of Corporate Governance Policies

The Nominati on NBM)d MResnumeemtada pmo iCotmand
support the performance of the Boad of Directors concerning nomination suitable ce
directors,-soimmittee, and executives, in accordance with tbé thelidirextomandtivgh
ranking executives, as well as determination of appropriate remuneration to be prop
the administration of the Board of Directors totbe priccipj@gaotgawthcorporate govern
of the Company and support the personnel of the Company at all level to adhere
Corporate Governance and Business Code of Conduct.

NominationRerduneration of Directors

The Board of Directors has assigned the NRC to determine the appropriate comper
the Board of Directors to achiserbaiid dogt goals before presenting to the Board of |
and t he s happ®valoThe MRCstaékes mte actoumnt dutie and responsil
Company?®s performance together with ¢t
comparison with the remuneration of the directors in the same industry.

Independence of the Board of Directors from the Management

The Company places importance on the composition and operation of the Boaroc
independent deuneskimg. Therefore, the Chairman of the Board of Directors is not the
Managing Director in order to cedadérsebaltre Board of Directors and the Manageme
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Director Development

The Board of Directors has promoted and facilitated training and educating those
governance of the Company such as Director, Audit Committee, Executive Officer,
improve performance. The trainlagdgencthéy take place within the Company or usi
institutions. In addition, once there is a change of new director, the Company wil
I nformation that ar e usef uihtrodudion totthe patupe ¢
of the business and business practice of the Company to new directors.

In 2@2directors and executives of the Company have attended training cources to de\
in management aiARoRAKS/2024 Course, Thai Institute of Direcitrs MssQH&QIAOZUO D’
Growth & Al ChapteTCoArsd-O CPD Course 1/2024, Topic: Guidelines for Enhanc
Financial Reports of ListedTCQARaR@CPD Course 2/2024, Topic: Econldrié Update
CFO CPD Cour se 3,/T2ZCAZEQ CPD cCpurse 4/2024, Napc o G
Standards Rel atTeldCA oCFE®B QCPIe cQioruirtsiee s6 /1
Managema@ntCAf €F OCE®DU Cour se 7/ 2 (BAsthess T o |
Combination and Advanced Consolidated Financial Statements, WWgrghop,TBatch :
Updates Candéey Changes in TFRS for NPAEs (Revised 2022) Course

Supervision of subsidiaries and associated companies

Supervision of operations of subsidiaries and/or assoagaettcomiiabesesponsible
dispatching directors of the Company or selecting executives who have qualifications
the business operations of the subsidiary and/or associated companies tmiepresent |
important policies and control the business operations of the subsidiaries and/or
accordance with strategies and business plans under good corporate governance pr

Promotion of the exercise of sharehol
The Board of Directors has promoted the rights of shareholders and encourage shi
basic rights to allow shareholders to participate in making decisions on important
Through t he s tciaingédhe dollodiegrrights, the aight to prgpos®d gge
sharehol ders?® meeting, the right to af
person to attend the meeting and vote on their behafferdmnsigbt he nonsitkeed for
appointment as the Company?®s director

technology information sufficienthtéy a|
right to vote on the annual remuneration of directors, the right to participate and infc

change in the Company, the right to e
55

561 One Repott 202



6.2

to share profits of the Company, etc. in order to protect the rights of shareholders a
to exercise their rights including the right to be treated as a shareholder equally.
established guidelines, examples:

[ In each meetshguatholders, the Company will arrange to use the meeting place in |
which is the headquarter of the Company. The venue of the meeting of sharehc
size to support the number of shareholders atrdvabt drhetesteddailities for trave
have security and are ready to handle emergency situations appropriately.

[ Allowing the shareholders to be able to vote for the election of directors individuall
persons to be appointed as the directors of the Company, which are disclosed ol
Exchange of 3Jwebsitd and and the Company

[ During the meeting, the Chairman in the meeting allows all shareholders to have
the opinions and queries within the appropriate time. Related directors and exect
the information to all shareletteersicolnging organizing activities that disseminate
shareholders, investors and the general public for aknowledgement.

AnCorruption
The Company realizes the importance of transparent business operations, adhere

corporate governance, social responsibility and stakeholders and prevent corrupti
organization in all cases. The fooenpas g stevkshe@amulmiton Policy, Whistleblowing
Complamking Policy. Including preparing written guidelines for not asking, not accej
doing business with individuals and juristic persowhididiad beearagpioned by the Bc
of Directors.

Business Code of Conduct

The Company is committed to ethical business conduct with transparency and tr
accordance with the Good Corporate Governance Policy. Therefore, the Business
established as a good practicesfos)acdireetoand employeef\tadimoeibiicy and

Guideline for Corporate Governance and Business Code of Conduct as a guidelin
directors, executives and employee of the Company in conduttingdnusiedsmntieatoskst
of ethics, integrity and honesty by requiring directors, executives and employees at
give importance and adhere to the performance of duties as assigned responsibly, t
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and fairly to achieve business operations according to the visiontdrthevahgaritration
the organization by driving the business to be stable and sustainable.

In 2@2the Company operates in accordance with the Business Code of Conduct by
and employee of the companies compl yi
Exchange of Thailand, the Securitee€aminiSsibaragcording to the good corporate gt
policy and the business code of conduct both the conflict of interest policy and the su
information to be consistent with the vision and gdal2dthee@oggrarstionl not find an:
complaints or reports of violations of the Business Code of Conduct.

The Board of Directors has expressed intention to conduct bosmasmbilitit, teantspa
adherence to the duties of directors, executives and employees including related
avoided as a stakeholder or person involved in conduct that may create a conflict of
in private affeith the Company.

The Company?3?®s confidentiality policy
information without using specific information for securities trading or send such infori
and does not disciosssbidormation to competitors even after termination of the pc
executive or employee of the Company for the benefit of all.

The Insider Information Policy is a measure to prevent the misuse of insider trading
the directors, executives, employees and workings of the Company related in the info
and underage childrberpefssut including the penalty on the disclosure of the Compa
using the Company?3s information for pe
to report their securities holdings, spousesaaadohidianedhiedal age to the Securiti
Exchange Commission under Section 59 and report the interests of the directors and
must be reported to the Company and reported online through the Seauntiéssand &x
system.

The Board of Directors pays attention to tax matters and has an ideology in conduc
social responsibility and all groups of stakeholders by providing a strict tax managen
of accuracy in accortdaheepvuiiciples of good corporate governance, as well as detern
to the overall devel opment of the cour
Company therefore has a Tax Policy combistingreft@xpiltals of conduct, tax risk mane
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6.3

and tax transparency. In 2023, the actual tax rate paid is 20% compared to the tax r
required towdagh is in accordance with law.

The Major Changes and Developments of Policy and Practice of
Governance 4 202

The Company assigns the Board of Directors to be responsible for determining the (
and supervise policy compliance. The Board of Directors will arrange for a regular re
Governance at least once a year.

In this regard, overseeing or following up to comply with the Business Code of CondLt
that it is the duty and responsibility of the directors, executives and all employee
understand to company withdatidasiaédis ethics and work code of conduct strictly wh
in the organization must supervise and it is important to ensure that employees und
understand and strictly adhere to the established BusinessTChde of cCenduicte w
Business Code of Conduct in accordance with the laws, rules and regulations in acc
changing environment. Therefore, the Board of Directors has required to regularly re
once a year.

In 2@2the Company has made important development by establishing a Risk Mana
consider and scrutinize the overall risk management policy and guidelines of the Cor
and monitoring policy compliance, detertoiriee rmsaduto manage risk appropriate
circumstances and regularly reports t
risk status and various change.

However, for the principles that cannot comply with the current corporate governanc
Directors considered the appropriate |
resolution for the Audite Gordnitbenination and Remuneration Committee to nom
remuneration, review and present to the Board of Directorgl fraapraral ties/jiemvicgplels |
of CG Code that the Company has not yet applied irsifsllmvesness operations a
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- The Company did not disclose det ai
Reason/Necessity

The Company disclosed the details
remuneraion, so it was not disclosed separately.

- The Board of Directors must consist oindepetiteemb0¥e ctors
Reason/Necessity
The Company has considered the number of directors as appropriate for bt
Currently, the Company has 3 independent directors out of a total of 8 direc
aldirectors.

In 2@2the Company has adopted the principles of good corporate governance for li
(CG Code) by managing and performing the following as:

Principle 1 Recognize the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as the
create sustainable value for thbebBsiassf Directors has improved, review the ru
commitiEeleast once a year and there are improvements to the Good Corporate Gc
Code of Conduct. In addition, the Board also promotes a Business Code of Conduc
stakeholders.

Princile  Define the business objectives and main goalssf@muptanyaing\establishe
a vision and mission with a focus on sustainability and operates in accordance with
policies and goals.

Princide Build effective commiiee€3ompany sets and reviews the board structu
proportion of independent directors in accordance with the regulations and rules of tf
the NRC, remuneration and corporate governance are resgoestoles.fordf&ideelectior
Board of Directors has an annual performance evaluation of-tbenBidtedsoaridirect
Managing Directors.

Princigle  Nomination and Development of Top Executives and RHedfihel Manag
Company has developed skills and competency plans for important positions that re
Company can continue its business. The Nomination and Remuneration Committe
personnel to take respomajpditarib management positions at all levels with appropriat

with the Company?3®s business strategies:c
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with the nomination process with consideration of individuals both inside and ou
appropriate including the management development program along with succession

Principle 5 Promoting Innovation and Responsible Busi2&X [@pEmtipasy create
policies to support creativity and innovation management within the organization for :
projects within the organization for employees to participate in presenting ideas fo
operationgdaysing on theffative use of resources, to reduce the impact on the en
maximize the benefits to the organization.

Principle 6 Ensure that there is a suitable risk management and TiterGahngoartno| sys
manages risks and internal controls effectively. The Company requires the Risk Ma
analyze and assess the risks including various internal control systems within the C
and report the resudts ariaysis with solutions to the Executive Committee and the A
acknowledgement at least once per quarter.

Principle 7 Maintain financial credibility and disclosuldefBofrdraEtiDirectors and th
Executive Committee regularly monitor the performance and operating results esy
liquidity of the Company every month including the trend of financial problems to c
financm@bblems that may arise in the future. The Board of Directors has also encoura
and the person responsible for investor relations, increase communication with shar
and other stakeholders mgpartiegpattivity of listed companies to meet investors (Opp
2023, the Company has participated in

performance, Company Snapshot or Fact Sheet imesspernioanzexem l@ach quarter,

Principle 8 Encourage participation and communicationhgiBosirdrehDidecsors provide
opportunities for shareholders to participate in proposing meeting agendas and the li
the directors and also supports tshe s
the meeting3s resolutions were notifi e
and the minutes of the meeting were also disclosed am¢hk €ampamy f or s h
to the information.
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Annual PartilBnSiport Day 2
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7. Governance Structure and Important Information abot
Sulcommittee, Management, Employees and Others

7.1 Governance Structure
The Company?3s IDecansdbgdeam berdpresentad asddllows: e a s

Board of Directors

Exec u_t ve Audit Committee
Committee

Nomination and

Remuneration
Committee

Managing Director
|

Company Secretary gl et Internal Auditor
Sustainability Development Risk Management
Working Group N Working Group

General Manager General Manager General Manager
Domestic Sales & OEM & Export Engineering &
Marketing Sales Department Maintenance

General Manager General Manager General Manager
Finance & Human Resource &

Accounting Administration

Production
Department

7.2 The Board of Directors Information
The Board of Directors consists of persons who do not have any prohibited qualificat
in propeated offences committed in corruption, no transaction history that may cau:
NDR. Such persenlisekidog e a b | e, plays an i mportant
senior management, platelbotiastideingn operations as well as determine the monetar
management and overview of the organiztdiuniofdan avengeeing, auditing, evaluati
performance and the performance of senior management to be in accordance with tl

The Company3?®s management -cemmittaes tamalyahe Audli
Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The Board of
appointed by tpresent, shh Board df DitectodsnemBests whech are n
executive directorsexeaubive directors, and 3 indeperulgive rairegsoshown in

Attachmenhé Details of Directors, Executives, Chief Financiat@ticgr and Company
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In this regard, the Company stipulates that the Chairman of the Board of Directors is
Managing Director, to create balance and review of management and has establishe
and responsibilities of theekeectiives, managing director clearly with duties in the s
stipulated in the regulations of the Stock ExchangeAtta€haieibzZateslodwreiBoard of

Directors and@unhittees.

The Position of the Board of Directors

Name Position
1Mr . P o ngs a Chairman of the Board of Directors
) Chairman of Audit C@@hauitteen of Nomination and Remungér
2D6Si r aaftamont] a ]
Independent Director
) Chairman of Executive/Cmmétesf Nomination and Remuné
3Mr . Chaiya . :
Managing Director
4Ms . Ni t t a y| Director

S Mr. Marco Low Peng

Director

eMr . Teer as

Member of Audit Coktemtbesz of Nomination and Remuneratic
Independent Director

TMr . KKiowti i a

Member of Audit Comaeqtexedent Director

8 M.rBoonlai Jamparat

Direct&xecutive Committee

9. Mr. Loo Jieh Sheng

Director

*Remaikh e director who i sndMrBoanlait h e

Jamparat

Company?s

Among the Board directors, three have been appointed as anthoupstedioédiues, r
authorized directo@oofpl@y are as follows:

1Mrs. Nittiya Samrittivanicha or Mr. Chaiyasit Samrittivanicha or Mr. Boonlai Jampar
Any Two of the above Three directors jointly sign with the company's seal affixed in
financial transactions.

2Mrs. Nittiya Samrittivanicha and Mr. Chaiyasit Samrittivanicha

Any Two of the directors jointly sign with the company's seal affixed in the docut
transactions
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Term of Office

At the Annual General Meeting of Sheaehatiiiedsaédbh total directors must retire from
If it is not possible to divide the total number of directors evenly by thre nbhstnumb
retire from the term.

In choosing those directors who retire, length of service reiditre @ osodsitahiosbertm
have served longest are most eligible to retire. Nevertheless, a-edictandirector is elig

Il n this regard, i ndependent directors
meeting consatkekspproves-ghection of independent directors who hold the position fc
consecutive years to be independent directors.

Each director has experience and expe@isenmglatechtpthes busi ness a
diversity of the Board of Directors as follows:
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EJ

Board Skill Matrix and Diversity as of 31 December 202
Educations and Experiences
o = = > ((})
o . E o % § -§ =
o |8 . | @ F | 8 | 2 | o oW
: 3 = o = < = e |25 o
Director 3 o |2 5 | x 2 | 3 | E| £ |5cao
c | O o ge] = = = < zé o f, @
S | o a T £ S e " 5 | € 02
= = | = o — = @ = G 7 S |weg
S [} o = [T} S o ®© @ ®© - 5 = i
3 Q | © = Q o) = 2 % £ E |80 8 %)
21|88 |[§|S5 |8 |8 |2 |w |8 |8 |388 =
a £ |= L x < i £ N o0 E loxean| S
1. Mr. Pongsak Swadwan P P
2. Mr. Chaiyasit Samrittivanic| P P P P P P P P P P
3. Mrs. Nitaya Samrittivanichg p P P P
4. Dr. Siraklautakanont P P P P P
5.Mr. Teerasak Sawangnet | P P P P P
6. Mr. Kovit Kristhanin P P P P
7.Mr. Marco Low Peng Kiat | P P P
8. MrBoonlai Jamparat P P P P
9. Mr. Loo JiehgSh P P P
aea 9 3 1 2 4 3 2 1 2 9 1 2 1
- 1 Female Independent Oifictate@nsd
- 4Directors with experience in rubber industry
- Average term of 8ffigeass
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7.3

V, 7>

RUBBER }

Information of o Buhittee

The Board of Directors has apmiktechnaitieeso that shareholders can be as
that the Company has operated carefully-committeasec®rsisting of (1) Auc
Committee (2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee and (3) Executive
as follows:

Audit Committee

Audit Committee consists of 3 independent directors. The composition of the
of at leastthird or not less than three independent directors, has the duty to re
financial that reporting is accurate ahosadedpyateatdinating with external au
and responsible management including reviewing the Company to have an
internal audit system and a risk management system that is concise, app
efficient. The gtapthority and duty are defined in the chariitadheieig Appeal
The Charter of the Board of DireotarsittedsSub

As of 31 DecembekrlieCommittee consists of 3 independent directors as fol

Director?3 Position

1.Dr. Sirada Jarutakanor Chairman of Audit Cdnuepisredent Director

2.Mr. Teerasak Sawangi Member of Audit Corfmaitieendent Director

3. Mr. Kovit Kristhanin Member of Audit Corfmaitieendent Director

*Remalk. Sirada Jarutakanont is the Audit Committee who has knowledge and expe
and finance.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 3 directors. The comy
mustonsist of at least one indepetwisump oiine ther performance of the Board of C
in determining the rules and guidelines for the performance of remuneration
candidates f or t hecompnttea and tbermar@Edgementh e
scope of authority and duty are defined in the chaterchDeBilg &baetarin

of the Board of Directoandi®ess.
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As of 31 Decemdpdidihation and Remamenaitisre consists of 3 directors as fol

Di rect ol Position

1Dr.

Sirada Jarutakan(¢ Chairman of Nomination and Remunénatepe Qenibidiesrta

2Mr.

Teerasak Sawan{ Member of Nomination and RemungiatiepgbaiamiDaecto

3Mr.

Chaiyasit Samrittf Member of Nomination and Remundfatiecd@ommittee

Executive Committee

The Executive Committe& mamststssoivhiulieeetor &iackecutives who are not
directors of the Company, is responsible for planning and formulating variou:s
requiring that they be reviewed at ledst anhdition, yeer. Executive Committe
responsibleldtermining the direction, strategy, working plan, budget, organi.
and management structure principle
economic conditions and competitive conditions in thvdedgikgtancl@adhagiagkn
risks in the organization to propose to the Board of Directors for acknc
consideration and approval, and al
according to the specifiitepatioye thbaty and duty are defined in the charter.
appearAttachmenh& Charter of the Board of DirectorsitiedsSub

As of 31 Decembdrxd@2itive Committee tdnsctts ©hs follows:

Executive Position
. Mr. Chaiyasit Samrittivan| Chairman of the Executivéli@chaitte
. Ms. Krittayawan Kungma| General Man&ggance & Accounting
. Mr. Boonlai Jamparat General Man&ygeduction
. Mr. Domrongkreat Pasroy General ManMgechin&rygineering
. MrAnuthep Aiumtragool | General Man&jeM & Export Sales
. Ms. Thitikarn Chaichonch General Man&tygnan Resources and
Administration
7. Ms. Ajchara Satongto General Man&ganestic Sales and Mg

O U1 | W N
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7.4

Sustainability Development Management

In addition, the Executive Committee has appointed the Sustainability Dev
comprising the Managing Director, senior management, and represent
departments. They have duties and responsibilitieseinelomuutetg giekcaew)
sustainability goals of the Company including related management system
hand in hand with social and environmental responsibility. In this regar
Development Management does rainTpeasati@myor any other benefits fror
Company and uphold the duties 1 n a

Risk Management Working Group

The Executive Committee has appdamadetneriRis¥ork Group comprising of
management and representatives from various departments to define the ris
affected of risk and seeking the prevention atwEgpoutinekGoalysitee and Auc
Committee to review every quarter as define by risk management policy

Information of Management
As of 31 December 2023, the Management consists of 8 directors as follows

Executive Position
Mr. Chaiyasit Samrittivan Director / Mariageugor

. Ms. Krittayawan Kungma| General Man&gsance & Accounting
. Mr. Boonlai Jamparat General Man&ygeduction
. Mr. Domrongkreat Pasroy General Mandgchinery Engineering
. MrAnuthep Aiumtragool | General Man&je & Exgaids
. Ms. Thitikarn Chaichonch General Man&fienan Resources and
Administration

ol A w NP

7. Ms. Ajchara Satongto General Man&ganestic Sales and Mg

The Board of Directors and/or the person designed by dbesikiesed @anbDirect
appointed Managing Director by Nomination and Remuneration Committee t
selecting persons with knowl edge a
operations and the Managing Directbenmaevele\antd time to perform their o
effectively in order of the Company to benefit the most from the capabilities ©

In the event that Managing Director takes the position of director or executive
or listed company, those are not a subsidiary of the Company must be pre:
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7.5

Directors for consideration and approval on the suitability of the type of busii
a type of business that has the same nature and is in competition with the bt
in order to perform their duties fullifiaiechtallocatelve scope of authority and d
defined in the charter. Detdlseahpeciitid Charter of the Board of Directors ant
committees.

Any operations which Managing Director or attorney or those who may have
the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or relevant companies, the Managir
authority to approve operations regarding sucst imapeopoled at the Board
Directors and/ or Sharehol ders?® mee
it is the approval of normal business transaction with general commercial te
the noticehebecurities and Exchange Commission and/or the Stock Exchangt

Remuneration of Management
IN282 t he Company has paid remuner e
summarized as follows:

(1)Monetory Remundraéid®dompany has paid remuneration consisting of sala
to7executives, ®289,B2ht.

(2)Other Remuner@tienCompany has provided a provident fund for the ma
which the Company contributes at the ratio of 2V/ilué tbensphary.has 212i2d
contribution to provident fund for 8 executives, totally 62,816 Baht.

Information of Employee

The Company has set remuneration,
consistent with the competence of
experi encrees ppoonssiitbiiolni,t ideust ibeys ,passi |
to suit t@emparakhée¢ fobonheureompa
criteria for adjusting compensatio

and t meepamfdarcrma ors (KPI ), i ncl ud

payment to al/l empl oyees and adjus

performance as wel | as the employe
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As of 31 Decembygh@@imber of employees of the Company divided by main
follows:

: Number of Empl o

Main Se Full Time Daily Torf[al
1.Domestic Sales 9 - 9
2.Export Sales 2 - 2

3.Production 185 222 407
4.Mechanical Engine 25 - 25
5. Offic®perations 26 8 34

Tot al 247 230 477

Remuneration of Employee

In 2@2the Company has provided monetary remuneration to its employees (i
in the form of salaries, bonuses, etc. such as commissmTdyibudidimeapdhewar
Social Security Fund, etc. which are totalled as follows:

Description 202 202 202
No. of Employees ( 467 456 469
Tot&emunerd@alt 92 B® 1 %454 103,674,326

Provident Fund

The company goavident fund since 21 JurikBROAdseitManagement Co., Ltd. °
Company has joined in 2heeredéntalf salary to motivate employee and morale
long term. There is a policy to support the selection of fund managers who

governance principles for instituionalvingestorsne nt Gov er nan

fund manager who manages investments responsibly, taking into account er
governance f act emnmarce f(dractieesS & fpllowedana disclas
guidelines for selecting fund managers to members, this will lead to investr
takes i nto account the best iIintere

In 2@2he Company and its subsidiaries contributions are paid to the provide
as follows:
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Company/Subg Yes/N¢ No. of Emplo] Employee Partic Amount contribute
Name PVD | participating Ratio (PVD/A| Company to(Bafjd
PVD (pejso| Employdged)o)

N.D. Rubber Pl Yes ao 48 220,996
Company Limit

N.D. Interparts| Yes ao 7 29,944
Company Limit

7.6 Other Important Information
Information of those who are directly responsible for accounting supervision
details appeattachmefth& Details of Directors, Executives, Chief Financial
Company SecretattaahoheHead of Internal Audit.

Company Secretary

The resolution of Board of Director meeting of 2/2023 date 11 N¥ay 2023 «
Wat charaporn Wongmak, as aas®@alaspg@any
coordinate as per the Board®s reso

1. Prepare and maintain documents, as follows
a Register of Directors
b. Invitation letter to the meeting, minutes of the board of directors and st

2. Maintain reports of interest reported by Directors or Executives and send
interest under Sétdato 8% Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Ct
Audit Committee knows within 7 business days from the date the Compat

3. Providing legal advice, relevant rules and supervisory practices in condu
committee to be in accordance with the law.

4. Conducting the meeting of the Board of Directors and shareholder meeti
laws and regulations of the Company.

5. Contact and coordinate with the supervisory authorities, such as the Stock
The Office of the SEC and oversee the disclosure of information and re
regulators and the public in accordance with the law

6. Contact and coordinate with departments within the Company to comply
the Board of Directors and the resolutions of the shareholders' meeting

7. Liaise with shareholders, investors and the media to provide informati
Company

72
561 One Repott 202



8. Perform other acts as specified by the Capital Market Supervisory Board
9. Perform other duties as assigned by the Company.

Investor Relations
The Company assigns the Company&ebestayyivid/ciogialedk responsible in
investor relations role to communicate with the investors and stakeholders in
related public sectors to provide a complete, correct, and fair information ir
rules and regulationstadktiex®ange of Thailand and the Securities and
Commission. Investor Relations can be contacted by these 3 channels as fc

1. TelephoneB63B60707 EXP

2. Email: watcharaporn.wk@ndrubber.co.th

3. Website:www.ndrubber.co.th
In 202the Company has organized activities to communicate corporate inf
results clarification and answer questions about business with investors, sh:
such as online Opportunity Day, which has the Mapaglag @irefdonaisoa,
operating results clarification and business plan of the organization as well ac
for investors, journalists, analysts and the public to inquire.

Head of Internal Audit

The Audit Committee appointed BK IA&IC Company Limited by Ms. Boonn
Company?3?®s internal audi t . The Aud
holding the position of Head of Internal Ayskirierapsrapridigies effectively inclu
being appointed as Secretary of the Audit Committee as well. Qualification ¢
appeardttachment 3

Audi tor3s Remuneration

(1)Audit Fee
For the fiscal ydath20O2ompany and its subsidiaries paid foAaddit fees ti
Company Limited and Sawisyaporn Tungchinsujee C.P.A. No. 09870 ar
Baht and 153,440 Ringgit Malaysia to BDO Audit Company Limited. Th
and to persons or businesses related to the auditors and audit firm do not
or interests involving the Company, manageraésd, peckating their rel
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The Company and its subsidiaries paid audit fee as follows:

Company Reviewed F/S Audit F/S Total
(Quarterly) (Yearly)
N.D. Ruldbablic Company L 72(M00 Ba 7,00Bah 15®,00Bah
N.D. Interparts Company L 17,008ah 24008ah H5008ah
Fung Keong Rubber Manu 71,000 Ring 70ORIngd 1400 Ringt
(Malaya) Sdn. Bhd.
Total 1,85008aht attBO@ Ringgit Malaysia

(2) Nowmwudit Fee
The Company and its subsidiaries do not use other servises from the saic
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8. The Report of Corporate Good Governance

81 Summary of the Bédard3s Per:
In 2@2th&oard of Directors plays an important role in strategic consideration
direction and decisions to operate under the economic crisis through this tou
the Board of Directors monitor performance oC€Cdl,OLtdsredenpRidoee and
distribution electricity from solar energy. At present, Completed the installatic
of requesting permission to produce coniinerBiahrelextrizitgctors has review
missions, policies aadtiorjeria and others card rules that are beneficial to the
and stakeholders, such as the corporate good goeCemapiten pBhdgy,Ant
Whistleblowing and @uakigiftolicy, Corporate Social Responsibilities.

81L1Nominati on, Devel opment and Eval ua
The Company?®s independent director
1. holding no more than 1% of totainoitidigghlaeeshareholding of persons rele

the independent directors.

not currently be or never been t
consultant, or controliinégxaepaen: It has been at least 2 years after the |
held the position.

not by blood or legally registered with other directors, executives, major sh
parties, or persons who will be nominated as directors, executives, or col
company or subsidiary.

not currently having or never had any relati¢ims tivéhwidne tbangacty relation
may impede the person from having independent views. Also, the persol
be or never be a significant shareholder or controlling person for persc
relations with the &daxgapyion: It has been at least 2 years after the persot
position.

not currentl y bei?*nAlso, the persoa sheuld ndi eueen
be or never be a significant s ha
auditing firfexception: It has been at least 2 years after the person has hels
not currently be providing or never provided professional services, legal ct
consulting services to the company with a fee more thaisd MilkqreB=dtt per
should not currently be or never be a significant shareholder, controlling |
current service providers. Exception: It has been at least 2 years after th
position.
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7.not currently a director appoint e
the shareholder related to major shareholder.

8. not currently be operating under similar business nature and significan
company or subsidiary; or not a significant partner of the partnership, exec
worker, employee, or consultant; or holding mgreshhaees 15 avly vother
companies operating under similar business nature and significant compe
and subsidiary.

9. not under any conditions that may impede the person from having indep«
the company3s operations.

* Including the parent company, subsidiary, or affiliate, major shareholder(s)

After being appointed as independent director with the -gualbificatidheunder
independent director may assign by the Borad of Directors to take part in th
the Company, its parent company, subsidiaryecoonmaenryyppesadeidthat suck
decision shall be in the form of collective decision.

Qualifications of the Audiafecasialiews:

l. Having been appointed by the Boa
Committee Member.

2. Qualified for an independent director.

3. Not currently the director authorized by the Board to make administrat
Company, parent company, sulesidiayhsaimey, major shareholders, or cor
persons.

4. Not currently the director of the parent companigvelissidgayargr gdsed
companies only.

5. Having sufficient knowledge and experience to perform the duty of an At
must be at least one Audit Committee Member, who is sufficiently k
experienced to review the reliability of financial statements.

Nomination and Appointment of Directors

In the appointment of directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee \
of 2 independent directors out of a total of 3 nomination committee, respon
screening qualifi edespfAsspaation and © aanina
qualified candidates for professional and diverse director by considering tr
composition of the Board and offer opinions to the Board of Directors to s
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directors. The | ist of such dire:
directors according to the following rules.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the nature of
plans, then have set the qualifications of the directors who must be knowle
experienced in business dpeaaliltien, the Nomination and Remuneration
provided an opportunity for shareholders to participate in the nomination of g

The appointment of directors must
Co mp a n yAssociafon whick ih wting forthe election of directors, the Cc
for shareholders to use ballots to elect each director individually by allowing
their votes to select the persons nominated as directors one by one.

Nomination and Appointment of Top Executives (Managing Director)

The Board of Directors has considered and assigned the Nomination and R
to consider the criteria and methods of nominating qualified persons for 1
positions and nominate the names of persons deemeithagaspnatertdgethe
Board of Directors to consider and appoint. In the nomination process, the s
complete qualifications, suitability, knowledge, abilities, skills and experienc
Company?®sdepstandonseacdompany?3s bt
work to achieve the objectives goals set by the Board of Directors.

Succession Plan

The Company has a plan to select personnel who will be responsible for in
levels to be appropriate and transparent to ensure that the Company has
professional. The Human Resources Departmeasswlh igpafertvasagmng
Director and management of the Company to propose to the Executive Com
The details are as follows:

1. Managing Dilactasse, the position of Managing Director is vacant or the p
to perform the duties, the Company will have a process for executives ¢
deputy acting in the position until there is a recruiting apers@isction o
according to the criteria set by the Company and must be a person with v
abilities experience and is appropriate to the corporate culture. The
Department will bring a list of selsdtethedbxidats/e Committee for conside
and propose to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for conside
appoint a suitable person to take up the position.
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2. Executivascase, the position of executives (General Manager) is vacant
unable to perform the duties, the Human Resources Department will
successors to the ExecutivleeCammsidézation and approval for appointment

SelAssessement of the Board of-ChrantdtseSaind Managing Director

The Board of Directors has establishassaasananiafaseatie Board of Directors,
committees and Managing Director, in order to improve the performance of
and effective by usingstessaient formanlkiiex&tange of Thailand applied to sL
organization. The assessment topics as follows:

Seléssessment Topi Selhssessment Topi Selissessment Topi  Assessment Topic for
the Board of Direct  the Stlommittee Committee Membe¢  Managing Director

as a whole as a whole on an individual ba
(1Board Structure)and (1. Structure and (1. Structure and ) (1. Leadership h
Qualifications qualifications of the qualifications of the 2. Strategic Management

Board make the work ¢ | committee

2. The Board Meetin ) 1
ng the committee efficient 2. the Board Meeting

3. Duties and
Responsibilities of the

3. Change Management

4. Management

2. Meeting ef sub .
Competence with

- 3. Roles, duties and
committee enables the

Board of Directors Board to perform {heir Lisr.:]or?]?tilet{elhtles fo the Integrity, Ethics and

4. Duties of Directors | meetng duties efficient Good Governance

5. Relationship with 3. Roles, duties and 5. Financial Management
Management responsibilities of sub

6. Sethprovement/and | committee take to

Management Training | importance, take time
consider

\ J \-

Performance Appraisal of the Board of Directors and Managing Director 2024

202Performance Assessment
theBoard of Directaren®nittees ¢
Managing Director

Board of Directors on individual basis

‘ Board of Directors as a whole 98.01%

SIERIIE) CIE L mecmwesews  mas

0 =Strongly disagree or never (
1 Disagree or seldom conduc
2 =Fair or moderately conducte
3 Agree or awilducted

4 =Strongly agree or excellentl

Nomination and Remuneration Committee as a whole

Managing Director
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8.1.Meeting attendance and remuneration of the Board of Directors individually

Meeting attendance of the Bodmmf Diact@ry 2023 to 31 December 2023 are as f

Meeting Attendance

_ The Nominatiorr Annual | Extraordir

Director The Boal The Aud oo oo General  General

of Direct¢ Committ . Meeting ¢ Meeting

Sharehold Shareholc
1Mr . Pongsg 6/7 - - 1/1 1/2
2Dr . Sakanend §  7/7 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/2
3Mr . Chaiyag 7/7 - 1/1 1/1 2/2
4Ms . Ni ttay 5/7 - - 1/1 1/2
5 Mr. Marco Low Peng 717 - - 0/1 0/2
6Mr . Teer as 717 4/4 1/1 1/1 2/2
7Mr . K Kiowti lt a 717 4/4 - 1/1 1/2
8 M.rBoonlai Jamparat 6/7 - - 1/1 2/2
9. Mr. Loo Jieh Sheng¥ 1/7 - - 0/1 0/2

*Note -M.rBoonlai Janwasaappointed as a director on March 29, 2024

-Mr. Loo Jieh Slzengppointed as a director @D24igust 23,

For the directors who did not attend the meeting, they inclu@baiMmaRaigsak
the Board, who had to be absent due to health issues; Dr. Sirada Jarutakanc
Mr. Marco Low Peng Kiat, and Mr. Loo Jieh Sheng, directors, who had to |
commitments, making it impossilienidtheemettiag

Remuneration of Directors

The Company has proposetitoniled Bheral Meeting of SharélgvMaeck held on
202to consideraapdp r ove t he directors?® remun
economic, practices of listed companies in similar industries, good corporate g
duties and responsibilities of each member. Thermewtitigeresoluadradidetef the
directors for the yiesni@®2vas set as meeting allowances only without comper
benefiBadils of remuneration as follows:
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Title Remuneration (Baht/Me;

Board of Director Meeting

Chairman A00O0

Member 2000
Audit Committee Meeting

Chairman HA000

Member 2000
Nomination and Remuneration

Chairman HA000

Member 2000

2@Roard of Directors®s RemunermlaBahbhtn (

The
: The Boa] The Aud MO The AGM a
Director? of Direct¢ Committ G The EGM Total

Remuner;

n Commit
1Mr . Pongsak 120,000 - - 30,000 150,000
2Dr . Sakanend a J 72,000 120,000 30,000 18,000 240,000
3Mr . Chaiyasi - - . - -
4Ms . Ni ttaya 18,000 - - 18,000 36000
5MrMarco Low Peng Kiat 72,000 - - - 72,000
aMr . Teer as ak| 72000 72,000 18,000 18,000 180,000
TMr . Kovit Kr 72,000 72,000 - 18,000 162,000
8 Mr. Boonlai Jamparat 54,000 - - 18,000 72,000
9Mr. Loo Jieh Sheng 120,000 - - 30,000 150,000

8.1.

NotéVir. Chaiyasit SamrigthéiMchBoonlai Jesopased remuneration as an executive of the Compan

Supervision the Operations of Subsidiary and Affiliated Companies

Supervision the operations of sibisadezampanies, the executives shall assign comj
or select the executive officer who has appropriate qualification and experiences wit
and affiliated companies to be a management represenjaiicy @ndeforoharsiness
operations.

In order to supervise the operations of subsidiary and affiliated companies being
tansparency, starting from 2015 onwards, the Company has defined the procedure
for voting in appoint personal to be Director in subsidiary shall have the approval f
appointed person who was apprmtedsagoBidiary and affiliated companies has respc
the best benefits of subsidiary and affiliated companiessaspien sindexgike, dpsoval
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policy from Board of Director including practice with good governance. The appoin
approval from Board of Director before voting or voting for important issue shall hav
Director. Sending Directeptedmntative in subsidiary and affiliated companies shall b
shareholding.

Furthermore, in case of subsidiary, the Company has defined the regulations th
overlook the subsidiary to have the regulations concerning assets transaction, ac
important transaction of the caoypamy eacunietely and use the criteria of informatiol
same as the Company practice including to control data collection, accounting
available for auditing and for financial statement preparation.

8.1.Monitoring to ensure that operations compliance with corporai@glwesnance policie
The Company focuses on the important to good corporate governance. The relev
have been set in the Company?®s Good
promoting real practice to build corkeleriderm all sta

In the past year, the Company has followed up to ensure compliance with goo
covering 1) reporting on related party transactions; 2) reporting on internal audit re
risks, etc. folmup results found that the Company has fully implemented the guidel
In addition, the Company propitiesrislioevcompliance with good corporate governar
iIssues as follows:

1. Prevention of Conflicts of Interest
The Company as established good practice guidelines to show its inte
business with transparency, accountability, and hold on the duty of direc
employees, including those involved to avoid becamnegssiakevaliceasror i
an operation in a manner that may cause a conflict of interest.

In 2@2the Company has examined cases that may cause conflicts of inte
there are no cases involving the Board of Directors, management anc
Company. In addition, to enhance corporate governance witip@nghe orgatr
has revised its business ethics in respect of prevention of interest by addi
case of related party transactions which are not in accordance with genel
principles approved by the Boardtbé Datot®@nor size of the transaction al
under the managements3s jurisdict.
Committee before proposing for approval from the Board of Directors or s
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2. The use of inside information for benefits
The Company has supervised the use of inside information in accordanc
accordance with the principles of Good Corgdar&@? Goeetoenend
executives have not found any trading in securities during the period th
specified to refrain from trading. However, the Company has set a p
information. The key policies are as follows:

1. Th&Company provides knowledge to directors and executives regardi
report the change of their securities holdings, their spouse and undel
Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with Sgction 59
Exchange Act B.E. 2535, within 3 working days from the date of change
In addition, those directors and executives must inform the Company
a memorandum of changes and summarize the numbgrsaf geduhies in
Company can inspect the securities trading of all directors and executi

2. The Company has a stipulation that prohibitadoestpkyeaeswiedave
received inside information which affects securities price, disclose suct
persons and must be suspesmdendtinpiieot] before the financial stateme
inside information are released tackbatdabétiodBEnd must not trade in
Company?®s securities under a pe
information to thelpubigregard, if it isatdbedrtbide information is used ir
way that will damage the Company or its sharehader diyoesetutive le
Board of Directors will consider the punishment as appropriate. In cas
a secondary level of executive level, the Executive Committee will con:
the offender.

The Company provides the revelation of significant dafandnutialfidateciabmadtinon
punctually, and transparently following the criteria in the revelation of data of S
Commission and Stock Exchangevell @kasigndicent data affecting the price of secL
the process of decision making of the investors and stakeholders of the Company.

the information technology to shareholders, investors, andgubédiziaftiseockann
Exchange of Thailand andwelsitbbebothtiThai and English. Moreover, the Comp
assigned the Company Secretary to act as investor relations to communicate wit
analysts, stakeholders and related government agencies in order to receive inform
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3. AniCorruption
The Company has reviewed important policies and criteria for efficient al

as well as promote the policies illustratigugbiocretecands arrange the ar
corruption activities in the organization to tiaizeupigole\licl da be clear,
established measures and guidelines for aotiwnptieigteddio astihe Executiv
Committee, who responsible for the risk analysis across the organizatior
that may occur befarertbroscof corruption according to each operating pre
with finding guidelines and preventive measures and monitoring plans for
corruption policies and report to the Board of Directors every quarter. |
training and communication of policies and additional channels for rec
complaints, as well as informing the whistle on corruption of the organiz
channels. In this regard, the Company has disclodelthds pmlibiesireess gu
operationsardantir upt i on on the Company?3s

Furthermore, the Company shall strive to operate its business in a way v
compliance with ethical and good corporate governance standards by upl
of good governance as well as code of conduct gridyinginessoegitnbtydis
toward the society, the environment and every group of stakeholders; anc
I n transparent, fair and verifiat
Sector Collective Action Caalition@gainr upt i on ( CAC) u
and commitment in fighting against all forms of corruption.

AniCorruption Policy and Related Practice

The Company shall not tolerate any forms of corruption and shall be appli
and transactions in every country worldwide and every relevant function.
the management and employees of NDR inclststgcsiybsufigoie smtiu the
defined Adrruption Policy and are prohibited from being involved witt
corruption either directly or indirectly inrdatoguwpitiorhigixecutives and :
employees should be cautiousootripotites, donations, sponsorships, gif
entertainment.

Directors, executives and all employees can receive gifts or any benef
festivals or normal praeticalsie of such gifts and hospitality must be appr:
does not affect practical decision or Company operation
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If in a situation that cannot deny receiving such gifts or benefits at that tir
notify the supervisor immediately and prepare a report for receiving gifts «
the Procurement Department to be used dsyaeswarthportantpfestivals o
requesting approval to donate to the public charity as appropriate.

. The Whistblowing

The Company has determined measures for whistleblowing or raising con
misconduct done by any director, executive or employee within the org
violation of the laws, Business Code of Conduct oeadytdebaviptidhat me
Various channels of communication have been provided so that the emplc
can conveniently and appropriately report incidents or raise complaints wi
whistleblower or complainant muatsnotifiigheaitent or complaint including
contact address and phone number through the provided channels.

- Chairman of the Audit Camextiteeal director who is independent)
Email: auditcom@ndrubber.co.th
Postal Mail: Chairman of the Audit Committee
N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited
129Mo0 BlongcHakanasnikom Road, Nongeiroon, B:
Chonburi 20220
Websitewvw.ndrubber.co.th
- Company Secretary
Email: watcharaporn.wk@ndrubber.co.th
Postal Mail: Company Secretary
N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited
12Moo RongcHakanasnikom Road, Nongeiroon, Bar
Chonburi 20220

Phone: +663B607 # 112 Websitendrubber.co.th
- General Manager of Human Resources and Administration
Email: thitikarn@ndrubber.co.th
Postal Mail: General Manager of Human Resources and Administi

N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited
12Moo RongcHakanasnikom Road, Nongeiroon, Bar
Chonburi 20220
Phone: +663B607 # 18ebsitenw.ndrubber.co.th
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The Company has measures to protect and maintain confidentiality in orc
of whistleblowers and informants who Buwt i@a@uopdraighall not disclose t
identity, address or any other information pertaining to the whistleblower
treat such information as confidential and only authorized persons involv:
procedure can haveécasaelanformation. In the event that there is an act
by an executive or top mémagerder@ommittee shall be responsible for en:
protection of the whistleblower or complainant, including the witness
throughout investigation period so that they are safe from any danger, hat
to whistlelplgwr raising a complaint or being a witness or for disclosing any
person authorized to be responsible for such matter must strictly maintai
all relevant information and documentation concechinfptheacbamiamast al
not disclose such information to any irrelevant parties unless it is required

Investigation proceperstiss for fraudsters, employees who violate or do
rul es wil|l be subject to discipl
directors or employees will be punished according to the law. The invest
as follows:

1) Upon receipt of whistleblowing information or complaints, the recipien
via various channels are required to respond to the whistleblower th
already been received (in case that the whistleblowersieaeeghitres idel
are also required tolgastmerimormation and submit it to the assigned fu
further actions.

2) The assigned functions conduct investigations and gathering facts as
performing their duties with fairness, regardless of the position, dura
iImportance of the whistleblower to the Company.

3) Once the-fiading is carried out,nib@ fswigons shall prepare an investig
report and propose appropriate manageneErenhatmcEurrence in eacl
matter to the Audit Committee, Managing Director, General Manag
Accounting, General Manager of Human Resources and Administra
person as the case maybe.

4) Regarding the aforementioned process, the measures can stop the
compliance with the Business Code of Conduct while alleviating dam
Impacted persons considering total damage into account. In addition, |
need to be set up to protect the whistleblower who reports such miscol
and the persons who provide coopefatthngdproog $act
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5) The Audit Committee or Managing Director reports to the Board
acknowledgement and reports on thehissetibwértheho submitted suc
complaints (in case that the whistleblowers reveal their identity).

In 2023, the Company did not find any whistleblowing or complaints about
of good corporate governance and practices.

8.2 The Report of the Audit Committee in the Past Year
The Audit Committee of the Company consists of 3 independent directors v
experience in accounting and finance, business investment and administratic
as required under the Notification of the SgeuGbesnaisdi&xche Audit Commi
duly performed its duties within the scope of responsibilities as assigned by
which are prescribed in the Audit Committee Charter and in line with the re
Exchange of Thailand.

In 2@2the Audit Committee has conducted 4 meetings and reported its perfo
of Directors on quarterly basis. The details of attendance of each members

Year 202
Director Position (No. of Meeting Attende(
Meeting Hold
1Dr . Si r a d| Chairman of the Audit C¢ 4/4
2Mr . T e er a|Member of Audit Commi 4/4
3IMr . Kovi t|Memberof Audit Commi 4/4

Evemneeting was the meeting with Auditor, Internal Auditor, Managing Dire
Officer and other relevant executives in accordance with relevant agendas, i
with the Auditor without attendance of any maragernaststéions@pesignifican
matters as well as acknowledgments of performances and recommel
complications and difficulties during performing of duties. The Audit Com
reported, made an opinion and gavenrézdhenBodat of Directors which con
reviewing financial reports, review of the internal control system and intern
management, review of compliance with applicable laws and regulations, cc
transactionsransactions conflict of interest, considered to nominate, appoint
Auditor3s remuner ati on caraptionpobcp.si de
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8.3

The Audit Committee performed its duties with prudent and independent i
advices for the highest benefit of the Company and also performed its duties
Audit Committee Charter and assignments froonsthe fBtaot vafiiChreoce Audit
Committee opinioned that the Company had compliance system and interna
and appropriate | evel for the Comp
with good governance tioa¢tisarpreparation of financial information fully and d
facts in material part in compliance with the general accounting standari
information was in accordance with laws, regulations and covenants in

Company?®s business and the Compan
operation and human resources for better quality and sustainable growth.

The Report of the PerformanceomathieEeSub

The Nominati on anis appointed by éahe Baand @fnDireCls
consisting of at least 3 directors and executives, of which more than half «
directors must be independent directors.

In 2@2there was 1 meeting and reported, made an opinion and gave recomm
of Directors as siAdtanhimeReport of the Nomination and Remuneration Com
details of attendance of each members are as shown below:

Year 202
Director Position (No. of Meeting Atte
No. dfleeting Hold

1Dr . Si r ad ¢Chairman of NRC 1/1

2Mr . Teer ajyMemberof NRC 1/1

3Mr . Chai y ¢Member of NRC / Managil 1/1

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has ioifitmatientatmsgdpoe th
Board of Directors in promotion of good corporate governance principles, de
policies regarding nomination, remuneration and corporate governance of the
sukeommittee as well as seaftett fand nominate a qualified person accordi
prescribed criteria and procedure to nominate for the director and executive [

The Nomination and Remuneratioih SBidroomtieae to strive the development
corporate governance operations for the Company to comply with the Busi
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and good corporate governance policy and believe that management under
principles, including giving priority to the responsibility to all stakeholders wil
grow sustainably and build confidence fanihalsktakbotdeéess.

The Executive Caronsiste of Managing Director as a chairman and executive
departments fqafiyons.

In 2@2the Executive Committee braleladitois)| with the details of the meeting atte

as follows:
Year 202

Director 3 Position (No. of Meeting Att

No. of Meeting H
1. Mr. Chaiyasit Samritt| Chairman of Exgoutivitielnaging Dire 5/5
2 Ms. Krittayawan Kung General Man&ggnce & Accounting 5/5
3 Mr. Boonlai Jamparat| General Man&yeduction 5/5
4 Mr. Domrongkreat Pal General Mandggrhinery Engineering 5/5
5 MAnuthep Aiumtrago( General Man&ygel & Export Sales 5/5
6 Ms. Thitikarn Chaichg General Manidgeran Resources and Ag 5/5
7. Ms. Ajchara Satongto| General Marigeestic Sales & Marketi 5/5

The Exec@w@mmittee has performed internal management duties, assess po
the organization, oversee the performance of sales and marketing departme
the financial status of thdt@isopaomtrols the efficiency of the production proc
up on the operation and maintenance of the machines, including taking ce
developing the potential of employees as well as reviewing and following up
as law related to business dgdsmatinasking, corruption report, etc. in order to
manage the organization within the Company.
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9. Internal Control and Related Party Transactions

9.1

Internal Control

Summary of opinions of the Board of Directors

The BoarDioéctors Meeting Mon1Z80R2ebruasyt@@Board of Directors assesse
the Company?®s internal control sys
Company?®s internal control system
Risk Assessment; 3) dileitizs] A) Information and Communication, and 5)
Activities.

The Board of Directors had the opinion that the Company has an internal c«
systems theffestive enough and suitable for current business, and can reasc
i n the reliability of the consolid
year 20Zhowing the financial position, profit and loss performance and cas
reviewed with correctness as it should be and in accordance with financial re

Sufficient Internal Control

The Audit Committee reviewed and assessed the sufficiency of internal ¢
Company and subsequently proposed to the Board of Directors to ensure th
appropriate and sufficient internal control for thatiCcopsEdgratusméssnithe

Il nternal audit report in connectio

1) Internal Control
The Board of Directors and management have set guidelines and practic
and conducted business in accordance with the Company Code of Cond
communicated and emphasized to employees of monitoring thed assessr
performance. The Board of Directors performs the duty independently
overseeing and developing internal control within the organization.

2) Risk Assessment
The Company has analyzed the risks from internal and external factors in
performance in all levels of organization, business units and departmer
likelihood and impact in strategy, operation, work tecmabgpdvnichntiation
Company has defined clear measures and mitigations in managing the ris
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3)

4)

5)

Control of Operation

The Company has set up control of operation for efficient operation to
acceptable risk level, such as setting policies and procedures on fina
procurement, overall management including clear delggationadtdjmproval
the Company and its employees shall operate in accordande with |
IATF16945:2016 which have identified a framework for performance that :
practice of employees to achieve goals.

Information and Communication

The Company realizes the importance of information and effective com
supporting internal control comprising quality internal/external informatiol
and providing suf fi c si@imtcompany businesa.t
The Company has arranged appropriate channels in communicating wit
stakeholders in business performance as well as receiving feedback i
customer satisfaction survey. The Cgeypaanoalsavaistieblowing channels
allows internal/external stakeholders to safely and securely disclose of fre
the Company.

Monitoring System
The Company always monitors and evaluates the internal control to ens
system is sufficient and appropriate and in line with quality management ¢
has appointed Head of Internalifuthie work process and report to mane
including corrective and tracking issues which reflects the efficiency a
operating standard.

Consequently, the Audit Committee reviewed and assedsaaltreticufbEiency
internal control subsequently proposed to the Board of Directors to ensure th
internal contrdlirk@@mpany business with consideration from the internal
connection with risk management and auditor.

The Audit Committee has performed with high qualification and independer
opinion for the Company advantages. The Audit Committee has performe
Audit Committee Charter and follow the role thaththe &sgded .Difbet€ompan
always monitors and evaluates the internal control to ensure that the inte
sufficient and appropriate and in line with quality management system.

subsi di ar i es dws the summaryi carfectlysbly dhaieFmanaial E
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StandardFRS and declare all information that follow the law such as term:
company business, declaration of related party transactions including subsic
process of operation professionally.

Information of Head of Internal Audit

In the Audit Committee MeetddgtBBEEBAOZAry428K 1A & IC Company Limitec
was appointed to act as the Compan
to be Head of Internal Audit who r

The Audit Committee has considered the qualifications of BK 1A & IC Com
Boonnee Kusolsopit and considers that they are appropriate to perform such
Kusolsopit is independent and has experiencen ithensamed huditiegsi as the
Company for a peh@hif @nd receive training in courses related to internal au
In 2@2 Ms. Boonnee has passed many traininghemapsetascelofishe audit
committee and confidethogrmmatiom systems audit foundation for internal au
FORUM 2024, TFRSORpUgmeate Corporate Indnie ZEBG Standards,
Development, and Experience, and Internal Congta.for IPO Readiness.

In this regard, considering and approving the appointment, removal, and t
holding the position of Head of Internal Audit of the Company must be aj
Committee. The qualifications of Head of Intefttachutid8 shown in
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9.2 Related Party Transaction

N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited (NDR) Related Party Transaction Repc
31 Decembetr 202

Connected Parties|  Type of Transaction Valje (B Necessity / Audit Commiti
of Relationship| Transactig FY 2023 | FY 2@2 Appropriateness Opinion
Related Transac

N.D. Interparts C¢ Sales Reve 159,911/ 94,833.20 | NDR sells raw mai The transaction

(NDI) and supplies to N[ reasonable becj
-The Comp producing certain | the trading price
subsidiary hold by products and sale | lower than the ¢
Company 91077% Company. plus margin whi
share and have th the same practig
Director Mr. Chaiy for making
Samrittivanicha ar transactions wit|
Nittaya Samrittival parties.
Sparparts 2,994,375 327,134.00| NDR purchases pr The transaction
Expenses for use inogperation| reasonable by s

of the Company | a price that is cl
the price charge
third party.

Location Re 1,800,0| 1,800,000.0 NDR agreed to N[J The transaction

Services rent factory buildin| reasonalt@ch
using in productior| rental fee asses
operation. by the independ

assessor.

Electricity 629,011 578,500.40| NDR uses NDI ele| The transaction

Expenses for use in offices, | reasonalte
warehouses and | charging the sal
canteens. rate as the Proyv

Electricity Authg

Labor Incor] 31,456. - NDI employs NDR| The transaction

produce products i reasonalne
normal course of | providing
business. remuneration at
rate stipulated b
NDR in accorda
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with the employ|
contract

Employee
Wage

12,642.

11,682.24

The Company has
maintenance work|
NDI to work in the
maintenance secti
(Boiler) Because N
personnel are insu

The transaction
reasonalne
providing
remuneration at
rate stipulated b
NDR in accorda
with the employ|
contract

Revenue fr
vehicle salg

130,841

The Company sell;
unused vehicles ta

Théransaction ig
reasonalysetting
the selling price
based on the

remaining book
on the date of s

vehicle rent
income

34,139

-The company hag
entered into a vehi
rental agreement f
goods transportati

The price is
reasonable,
calculated base|
the loan interest
and the deprecii
value of the veh

T. Thaicharoen Rul

Co., Ltd.

- Mr. Prasert, Mrs.
and Mr. Chaiyasi
Samrittivanicha &
director

- Mr. Prasert and N
Nittaya Samrittiv:
jointly hold 90% ¢
share.

- Mr. Chaiyasit
Samrittivanicha h
4.5% of share.

Spareparts
Raw Materi
Expenses

92,279.

87,344.40

NDR purchased c
foreplacementipar
order to support by
necessity.

The transaction
reasonable beci
trading price is 1
less than marke
price

Sale Reven

453,047

450,071.85

The Company has
purchased car tire
ThaicharBeibber C
Ltd. For replaceme
parts in order to sy
business necessity

benefits both partic

The transaction
reasonable becj
trading price is 1
less than marke
price
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Whitehouse Plastic| Consumabl 162,58 244,290.00| NDR has purchasg The transaction
Partnership Expenses plastic bag for usir| reasonable bec:
- Mrs. Mukda Sawa normal business | trading price is 1
(Mr. Pongsak operation less thamarket
Sawasdi)w price
the managing pari
and hold 50% of §
KR Marketing Sdn| Sales Reve| 185,027,32 108,065,31¢{ The Company hg The transaction
-The Comp motorcycle tire ang reasonable bec:
subsidiarykdt F FKR Marketing Sq tradingice is not
Malaysidn. Bhd. h to sell in Malaysia.| less than the co
by the Company ] margin.
of share and havii
Chaiyasit Samritti
as the-Doectors
KR aays&dn. Bhd | Sales Reve -1 128,084,79¢ The Company hg The transaction
The Compa motorcycle tire ang reasonable bec:
hold by the Compal FKR Marketing Sq tradingice is not
100% of share and to sell in Malaysia.| less than the co
Mr. Chalyasit margin.
Samrittivanicha as |
Directors
Saengcharoen Too| Sales Reve| 2,655,023 3,085,802.| NDR sold battery t The transaction
Center Co., Ltd. Saengcharoen To( reasonable becj
- Mr. Prasert Center Co., Ltd. ag trading price is 1
Samrittivanicha is distributor in order| less than marke
director and hold expand distributior| price
share. channel.
ETRAN (Thailand) | Sales Reve 415,45 - | NDR sold motorcy| The transaction
- An associated col to ETRAN (Thailarn reasonable bec:
in which NDR hols Ltd. for assembly i| trading price nolf
of share and has | electric motorcycle than cost plus m|
common director which is thepraiiuc
Mr. Chalyasit of ETRAN.
Samrittivanicha
T. Thaicharoen | Sales Reve 37,833. 963.3 NDR sold motorcy| The transaction
Co., Ltd. to T. Thaicharoen | reasonable bec;
- There is one cg@ Co., Ltd. to suppor trading price nof
director, namely logistic operations| than cost plus
94
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Thunyarat
Samrittivanicha

- Mrs. Nittaya
Samrittivanicha a |
10% sifiare.
- Mr. Chaiyasit
SamrittivanichEdfac
of share.
Siam Plastwood Cqg Factory 6,13 3,600.¢( The Company pur( The transaction
- Mrs. Nittaya Equipment equipment for use| reasonable becj
Samrittivanithe is repairing the factoj trading price is 1
director and hold Siam Plastwood C| less than marke
shares. price
Ms. Orapan Sale Reven 15,267. 104,651| The Company has| The transaction
Samrittivanicha motorcycle tire to I} reasonable bec:
- Ms Orapan Orapan Samrittival trading price nof
Samrittivanithe is than cost plus
daughter of Mr.
Chaiyasit
Samrittivanicha ([
and Shareholder)
Thaicharoen Tyre § - Sale - 1,200.( The Company has| The transaction
Co.,Ltd Revenue consumdble reasonable bec;
Has jointly 2 directc Thaicharoen Tyre | trading price nof
Nittaya Samrittivani Co.,Ltd, than cost plus
Mr. Chalyasit
Samrittivanicha
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N.D. Intergaots Ltd. (NDI) Related Party Transaction Report for the Yelar Ended

Connected Parties
of Relationship

Type of

Transaction Valge (B

Transactic

FY 2023

FY 2@2

Necessity /
Appropriateness
Related Transac

Audit Commit
Opinion

N.D. Rubber }

Company Limited (|

- The mother com
has jointly directc
Nittaya Samrittivz
and Mr. Chaiyasi
Samrittivanicha.

Sales Reve

2,994,375

327,134

NDI has sold cons
material to NDR fo
inthe packaging wi
not main productio
process

The transactior|
reasonable by
setting the trad
price of cost plt
gross profit
according to pr
type and use th
same practice i
third party.

Raw Materi
Expenses

156,911

94,833.

NDbought raw mat
for production proc

The transactiorn
reasonable beq
trading price is
less than marke
price

Location R¢
& Services

1,800,0

1,800,000

NDI has rented faq
building for using i
production operatig

Théransaction i
reasonabldch
rental fee asse
by the indepen
assessor.

Electricity
Revenue

629,011

578,500

NDI received elect
bills from Ke&dause
N D Bahteen and ¢
building use the sg
electricity matkrNC

The transactior
reasonale

charging the sg
rate as the Pro
Electricity Auth

Labor
Expenses

31,456.

11,682.

NDI employs NDR
produce products i
normal course of
business

The transactior
reasonalne
providing
remuneration a
rate stipulated
NDR in accords
with the employ
contract

Vehicles
Purchase
Payable

130,841

NDI bought vehicle
NDR for use in
transporting produ

The transactior]
reasongmeduct
by setting the s
price based on
remaining
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Vehicles re -1 34,139.24 | NDI has entered ir| The price is
payable vehicle rental agre| reasonable,
for goods transpor| calculated base
the loan intereg
and the deprec
value of the vel
T. Thaicharoen Rub| Spareparts 11,40 - | NDI has maintenal The transactior
Ltd. Expenses vehicles by T. reasonabdeaus
- Mr. Prasert, Mrs. N Thaicharoen Rubb product and ser
and Mr. Chaiyasit Ltd. for logistic charges are sa
Samrittivanicha arg operations. general custorm
Thaichar@abber Ci
Ltd. 3s D
- Mr. Prasert and Mi
Nittaya Samrittivar,
jointly hold 90% of
- Mr. Chaiyasit
Samrittivanicha joi
4.5% of share.
Whitehouse Plastic§ Consumabl 43,827. 47,986.| NDI has purchase( The transactior
Partnership Expenses plastic bag for usir] reasonable beg
-Mrs. Mukda Sawa: normal business | trading price is
(Mr. Pongsak operation less thamarket
Sawas di)isv price
the managing part
hold 50% of share
Thai Toyo Rubber ¢ Consumabl 82,78 NDI has purchased The transactiorn
-Mr. Praset Samrittj and Raw materials from Thaj reasonable beg
(Mrs. Nittaya Material Rubber Co., Ltd. to| trading price is
Samr i tt i | Expenses used in the product less than marke
husband) who acty Sale raw -1 12,400.00 | support the normal| price
director and hold 1 materials business.
of share.
T. Thaicharoen Rull Purchasing -1 5,046.73 NDI purchases car| The transaction
Co., Ltd spare par repai r NI reasonable beg
- Mrs. Nittaya and | order for goods del| trading price is
Chaiyasit and benefit both si¢ less than markg
Samrittivanicha al price
common directors
- Mr. Prasert and V
Nittaya Samrittiva
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jointly hold 90% ¢

shares.
Mr.Chaiyasit
Samrittivaniabld 4.5
of shares

FKR Magsiddn. Bhd. (FKRM) Related Party Transaction Report for the Ylear End

Connected Parties /| Type of| _lransaction Valge (E NEEER Audit Committe
Relationship Transacti FY 2023| FEY 2@2 Appropriatenes Opinion
Related Transa|
N.D. Rubber Public ¢ Buy - | 128,084,79 FKR has purchag The transaction ig
LimitédIDR) products motorcycle tire fr| reasonable becay

- The mother compa
jointly director Mr. C

Samrittivanicha.

NDR to sell in M;

trading price is ng
than thesplus
margin

FKR Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Related Party Transaction Report for thd Year End

Connected Parties /| Type of| _1ransaction Valge (E Necessity/ | A it Committd
Relationship Transacti FY 2023| FEY 2@2 Appropriatenes Opinion
Related Transa|
N.D. Rubber Public ¢ Buy 185,027,32 108,065,31] FKR hasrchase | The transaction ig
Limited (NDR) products motorcycle tire fr| reasonable becau

- The mother compa
jointly director Mr. C
Samrittivanicha.

NDR to sell in M¢

trading price is ng
than thesplus
margin

N.D. Green Rlaneb ((NDGRelated Party Transaction Report for the Year Ehded 3:

Connected Parties /| Type of|  'ransaction Valge (E NEESEEI Audit Committe
Relationship Transacti FY 2023| FY 2024 Appropriatenes Opinion
Related Transa|

N.D. Rubber Public ¢ Electricity| -1 6,635,696.4 NDGP sale elect| The transaction is

Limited (NDR) sale rever by using solar en reasonable by the

- The mother compd panels installed ¢ electricity tariff is
jointly director nam roof of the factor| conditions of the
Nittaya Samritvanic building. specified contract
Mr.Chaiyasit
Samrittivanicha.

N.D. Interparts Co., L| Electricity, -1 1,055,553.§ NDGP sale elect| The transaction ig

sale rever by using solar en reasonable by the
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Transaction Valye (E

Necessity /

Connected Parties /| Type of . Audit Committe
Relationship Transacti FY 2023| FEY 2024 Appropriatenes Opinion
Related Transa|

NDI hold by the Com panels installed ¢ electricity tariff is
0.68%nd have the Co roof of the factor conditions of the
Director Mr. Chaiyasi building. specified contract
Samrittivanicha

T. Thaicharoen Serv| Electricity| -1 194,932.42 NDGP sale elect| The transaction ig
Ltd. sale rever by using solar en reasonable by the

- There is one comm
director, namely Mr
Chaiyasit Samrittivg
hold 5%

panels installed ¢
roof of the factor
building.

electricity tariff is
conditions of the
specified contract

Xtronf@o., Ltd. Related Party Transaction Report for the Yead Ended 31 De

Connected Parties /| Type of| Transaction Valge | Necessity / Appropr|  Audit Committe
Relationship Transacti EFy 2021 FY 2a2 | for Related Transg Opinion

N.D. Rubber Public ¢ Advance - | 41,750,00( The company purch{ The transaction is

Limited (NDR) payment f machinery from a th| reasonable becau

- The mother compd machinery for the Xtronic Comy trading price is not

jointly director Mr. ¢ acquisitiot use in its operations| than the-past marg

Samrittivanicha.

Xtronic Company ha
insufficient cash flow
is scheduled to repu
the machinery within
year

Policy for Related Party Transaction

In entering into related party transactions and connected trandaition of tl
subsidiaries, the Company will comply with the requirements under the Secu
B. E. 2535 (as amended) , the Compar
requirement of the Capital Market Supervisoey Stcardieendiod Exchange
Commission and/or the Stock Exchange of Thailand including the disclosur
party transactions in the notes to financial statements audited by auditors c
subsidiaries and the anmeratl Stath G6e Report.
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Measures and approval procedures for related party transactions and conne

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

The Board of Directors will put in place a consideration procedure for rela
and connettadsactions in accordance with the work procedure of the Cq
subsidiaries subject to the framework of ethics and scrutiny of the Audit
consideration the interests of the Company and its sharehddsi$. The B
ensure compliance with the Compan
requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, the Securities and
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. TheviBadsd ehBunectbed the disclosu
requirements on related party transactions and connected transactions

ensure accurate and complete public disclosure of information.

Price suitability and reasonableness of transactions will be taken into con:
the transac@onditions of the transactions shall be in line with the normal
relevant industry and/or will be compared with prices offered by third |
demonstrate reasonable or fair price or conditions. The @osgudionsvill als
that are entered into.

In approving related party draosangoted transactions with major sharet
directors, executives or persons with possible conflict of interests or conr
Company, it is prohibited for interested directors and/or directors who are
have thghts to vote on the approval for the transaction. This is to ensure tt
will not amount to the relocation or siphon of interests of the Company bult
the best interest€omgb@ny and its shareholders.

The Company or its subsidiaries will enter into related party transact
transaction with directors, executives or connected persons once the tran
in accordance with the requirements of the Stock ExabffingeobthEnailar
Securities and Exchange Commission. Such transactions shall have tt
prescribed under the Company?3s P
conditions without the negotiating power diratfioen @xefsinds or connecte
persons, as the case may be and shall have the terms and conditions th
approved in principle by the Board of Directors.

The Company will prepare a report to summarize related party transac
transactions for reporting at the quarterly meetings of the Audit Commit
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Directors in order to comply witdht
Association, relevant notification, order or requirement of the Office of
Exchange, the Capital Market Supervisory BoargeanidTthail3tatk Exchan

6) The Company by the department of internal audit will carry out audits of re
or connected transactions in acc:«
Audit Committee. There will be measures fartthalloontiahdowch ahéck on the
transactions to ensure that they are correct and in accordance with the ag
policies.

Policy for related party transactions and connected transactions
Inentering into transeatiaingng general commercial terms and transactions whi
general commercial terms, the following principles shall be complied with:

1) Transactions with general commercial terms
The management may approve related party transections or connectec
contaigeneral commercial terms or transactions which support normal
Company including recurring transactions in the future if such transacti
commercial terms with directors executives, connected persons or person
of interests in accordance with the requirement of the Stock Exchange o
Market Supervisory Board and the Office of Hange CoitiesissidrEand such
business terms ar e abating pawer arrinfiedce df
directors, executives, connected persons or persons basis with possible
the case may be), and will not result in the siphon of benefits and/or
reasonable or fair prices owbmhdhere already been approved in principle
Board of Directors or are in accordance with the principles approved by tt

2) Transaction without general commercial terms
Related party transactions traosiacaotesiwithout general commercial terms
entered into subject to consideration and approval fronstiadl ApgroG@mmit
based on the necessity of such transactions and the appropriateness ¢
transactions, taking into consideration conditions that are in line with tt
business within the industry and/or will grecesroffared bytibhird parties and/
market price and/or shall be compareddeciodonditions offered by third p
and/or shall demonstrate reasonable or fair price or conditions. The tr
proposed to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval. Howe
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size is considered material in accordance with the requirement of the
Thailand, requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Capital Me
and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Coacti@sohaadtéetre tre
approved by the Board of Directors, they shall be further proposed to th
shareholders for approval.

Policy for future related party transactions and connected transactions
When the Company has completed its public offering of shares and has bec
on the Stock Exchange of Thailand, its related party transactions and conne
be in accordance with the following principles:

1) The Company will comply with its
Articles of Associatiomatfieations, or the Stock Exchange of Thailand. S
party transactions or connected transactions shall not amount to the re
benefit between the Company or its shareholders but shall be for the |
Compamgall shareholders.

2) If transactions are entered into in the normal course of business or for the
business of the Company and are expected be regularly recurring in the
will comply with the relevant requirements amuegutdetiaesastibnesvith
general commercial terms. Pricing and conditions of the transactions sha
reasonable and transparent. The transactions shall be entered into base
transactions with general eomsnii@idigve already been approved by the
Directors of the Company. For this purpose, the management shall prepar
details of such transactions to be submitted to the quarterly meeting of tt
preparatamntiie statement-EddmeSBeport.

3) Disclosures on related party transactions or connected transactions of the
accordance with the law and regulations prescribed by th&éhemgéthe Se
Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the accounting ste
Company or its related persons as prescribed by the Federation of Accou
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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S REPORT

To the Shareholders of N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited

| have audited the consolidated financial statements of In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate

N.D. RubberPublic Company Limited and its subsidiaries  financial statements presentfairly, in all material respects, the
(o0t he Group6) an dtatemeptaofNaDt ¢ consolidated financial position of N.D. Rubber Public Company
Rubber Public Company Limited, which comprise : Limited and its subsi di aries (0the

financial statements of N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited as

1 the consolidated and separate statement s of . )
at 31 December 2024, and its consolidated and separate

financial position as at 31 December 2024 . . ) .
financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash

the consolidated and separate statements of . ) - .
1 P flows for the year then endedin accor dance with Thai Financial

comprehensive income for the year then ended;

Reporting Standards.
1 the consolidated and separate statements of
changes in sharehol der s
ended;

1 the consolidated and separate statements of cash
flows for the year then ended; and

1 the notestothe consolidatedand separatefinancial
statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Audi t orth® LonslkdatedcandsSepmaiate iFihanoials
Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountantsincluding Independence Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions (Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, and | have fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of my audit of the consolida ted and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon,

and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTER AUDIT RESPONSE

Impairment of intangible assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group hastrademark which My audit procedures included:
arose from an acquisition of business related with . o
q I Assessed the reasonableness for identifying

distributing of motorcycle tyres and tubes, other related . . .
g yclety of the cash generating units and obtained an

roducts, and footwear. )
P understanding of the process for assessment

of recoverable amounts from that group of

assets.
The Group is required to test the impairment of intangible
] o o i Discussed with management to understand
assetsfrom business combination on annual basis in
. o ] ) the basis of assumptions used, including with
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.
future business plan.

1 Assessed the reasonableness of assumptions

For impairment test of such intangible assets is requires and methodology that management applied to

the management to exercise judgment to identify cash estimate expected future cash flow by

generating units and evaluating the appropriateness of comparing  those  assumptions  with

accounting estimates which use significant assumptions information from both internal and external

related to the estimates of future  cash flows expects to sources and comparing past cash flow

receive from those group of assets including the projections to actual operating resulits.

appropriate of discount rate which varies according to the 1 Assessed the reasonableness of the discount

economic circumstances and market. rate applied by management and tested
calculation of the recoverable amount of
those group of assets according to the model.

9 Considered the impact of changes in key

The Group disclosed accounting policies and detail of assumptions on those recoverable amounts.
trademark in Note 13 to financial statements. T Discussed with audito
the auditords model f

reasonabl eness of the

used for assessing the group of assets value.
9 Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness

of the disclosure of assumptions and

recoverable amount of those group of assets.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report but does not include the consoli da

thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and | will

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsis tent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required to

communicate the matter to those charged with governance and revise a material misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable t he preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Groupds ability to continue as a going concern, discl
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for ov
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Auditord6s Responsibilities for the Audit of

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
audi tords report t hat omnableadssurdneesis anmigh level of misuvamce, biR & aat a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consi dered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

9 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and app ropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overr  ide

of internal control.

9 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Groupds internal control

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

f Conclude on the appropriateness of management &c¢
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast si glityitdcontiraenas a gomgidortcernolhl 1
conclude that a materi al uncertainty exists, |
the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of my auditords report. However, future e
continue as a going concern.

9 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial
statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. | remain
solely responsible for my audit opinion.
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| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on my inde pendence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current year
and are therefore the key audit matter s. tunlesdlave arr
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, |
determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Amornjid Baolorpet

Certified Public Accountant No. 10853
BDO Audit Company Limited
Bangkok

28 February 2025
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H.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AHND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Unit - Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/5
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Hotes 2024 2023 2024 2023
ASSETS
CURREHT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 218,755 484 111,461 481 58,131,504 16,508 795
Trade accounts receivable - general customers 7 102,903,234 92,304,917 48,103,630 46,655,240
- related parties 6,7 571,473 735,264 17,469 869 14,640 452
Other current receivable - general customers 1,660,485 690,137 - -
- related parties [ 14,373 - 359,900 152,100
Amount due from subsidary [} - - 41,750,000 -
Current portion of long-term loan to employees 828,378 - 828,378 -
Inventaries ] 165,392,399 172,399 442 76,754,661 100,478,033
Refundable value added tax 10,556, 869 4,931,762 4 980,355 2,806,108
Refundable corporate income tax 8, 7E4, 782 6,787,528 - -
Other current assets 3,661,735 5,048,442 2,777,895 4,832,110
Total Current Assets 523,129,212 394,358 973 251,156,192 186,072,878

HOM-CURREMT ASSETS

Investment in subsidiary companies 9 - - 581,504,632 420,504,632
Investment in asseciated company 10 - 15,092,670 - 15,333,100
Long-term loan to employees 2,758 401 - 2,758,401 -
Property, plant and equipment 11 597,580,941 521,210,440 311,073,984 333,876,671
Right-of -use assets 12.1 6,963,451 1,929,161 1,654,111 1,929,161
Intangible aszets 13 92,141 427 97,765, 542 1,059,293 1,162,212
Deferred tax aszets 17.1 1,499 762 7,874,247 - -

Total Non-Current Assets 701,543,482 644,872,060 £98,050,421 771,805,976

TOTAL ASSETS 1,224,672,694 1,039,231,033 1,149,206,613 958,878,654
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M.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Unit - Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/§
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Hotes 2024 2023 2024 2023

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans from banks 14 82,379,677 86,323,149 82,379,677 86,323,149
Trade accounts payable - general suppliers 82,587 855 75,256,605 72,684,319 63,639,934
- related companies [} 81,996 37.3%0 138,974 138,677
Other current payable - general suppliers 30 7,982,863 4,998,976 6,833,130 4,998,978
- related companies [ - - 645,256 86,579
Accounts payable for purchases of fixed assets 411,764 566,342 411,764 566,342
Current portion of;
- Lease liabilities 12.2 3,463,017 383,789 411,084 383,789
- Long-term loan from bank 15 7,200,000 8,820,000 - -
Income tax payable 1,276,667 - 1,276,230 -
Accrued expenses 22,752,710 23,776,736 9,971,502 9,875,804
Accrued dividend payment 13,238 4,519 13,238 4,519
Other current liabilities 30 5,619,522 5,819,153 5,458,691 5,652,255
Total Current Liabilities 213,779,309 205,986,659 180,233,885 171,670,020
HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities 12.2 2,521 625 411,084 - 411,084
Long-term lean from bank 15 17,400,000 33,222,000 - -
Non-current provision for employee benefits obligation 16 14,353,626 13,453,130 12,075,690 11,285,019
Deferred tax liabilities 17.1 29,766,005 33,348,011 3,599,518 4,086,508
Total Non-Current Liabilities 64 041 256 80,434 735 15,675,208 15,782,611
Total Liabilities 277,820,565 286,420,884 195,209,093 187,452,621
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H.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AHD ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMEHNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/5 Separate F/S
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Hotes 2024 2023 2024 2023
LIABILITIES AND SHARFHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital - ordinary share, Baht 1 par value
Registered - 456,891,630 shares
(31 December 2023 : 433,614,392 shares) 18 456,891,630 433,614,392 456, 891,630 433,614,392
lzsued and fully paid-up - 456,891,630 shares
(31 December 2023 : 346,891,514 shares) 18 456,891,630 346,891,514 456,891,630 346,891,514
Premium on commen share capial 18 465 841 136 380,640 B46 465 841,136 380,640 846
Surplus on change in proportion of
investmient in subsidiary company 555,569 555,569
Retained earnings
- Appropriated for legal reserve 20 15,458 355 15,220,095 15,458, 355 15,220,095
- Unappropriated 39,713,728 49 757,430 15,106,399 18,673,768
Other component of shareholders’ equity (32,857 ,460) (41,822,381)
Total Equity of the Companys Shareholders 945,612,958 751,243,073 953,297,520 771,426,123
Mon-controlling interests 9 1,239,171 1,567,076
Total Shareholders’ Equity 946,852,129 752,810,149 953,297,520 771,426,223
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,124,671,694 1,039,231,033 1,149,206,613 958,878,854
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Unit - Baht) Consolidated F/5 Separate F/$
Hotes 2024 2023 2024 2023

Met sales 6,25 918,130,709 836,283,394 666,537,948 606,264,821
Cost of sales 8,23 (738,946, 378) (692,964, 575) (593,786,782) 1556,197 ,830)
Gross profit 179,184,333 143,318,819 72,751,166 50,167,001
Gain on exchange rate 1,592,783 562,192 1,491,742 407,619
Dividend income 9 - 7,608,800 7,694,400
Other income [ 3,851,717 2,506,647 4 777,714 3,551,896
Profit before expenses 184,628 833 146,388 658 86,629 432 61,820,916
Selling expenses 13 (51,068,204) (51,435,306) (15,848,393) (16,312,610)
Administrative expenses 6,23 (92,056,591) (85,198,734) (45,218 988) (39,819,004)
Impairment loss on intangible asset 9 (5,504,7053)
Loss on sales of inventment in assocaited company 10 (5,280,031) (9,833 100)
Impairment loss on investment in associated company 10 - (55,000,000) (5,000,000) (72,000,000)
Total expenses (154,009,531) {191,634,040) (75,900, 481) 1129,131,614)
Profit {loss) from operations 30,619,302 (45,245, 382) 10,728,951 (67,310,698)
Share of loss from investment in associated company 10 (9,212,639 (19,072,131)
Profit {loss) before finance costs and income tax 11,406,663 (64,318,513) 10,728,951 (67,310,698)
Finance costs (5,032,643) (4,659,699) (3,904,891) (3,462,960)
Profit {loss) before income tax 16,374,020 (68,978,212) &, 824 060 (70,773 ,658)
Income tax benefit (expense) 17.2 (8,524 B28) 3,930,858 (2,058 858) 1,124 482
Profit (loss) for the year 7,849,192 (65,047 ,554) 4,765,202 (69,649,176)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating financial statements 8,964 921 (24,490,630)
Items that not will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Losses from measurements of defined benefit plans - net (627,962) (749 .734)
Other comprehensive income for the year 8,336,959 (24,4%0,630) (749,734)
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,186,151 (89,518, 184) 4 015,468 (69 649 178)
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H.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AMD ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENMDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Unit - Baht) Consolidated FrS Separate F/S

Mote 2024 2023 2024 2022

Profit (loss) for the period attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 8,187,119 (64, 968,630) 4,765,202 (6%,649,178)
Hon-controlling interests 9 (337,927) (78,924) - -
Total 7,849 192 (65,047,554) 4,765,202 (6%,649,178)

Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 16,514,056 (89,45%,260) 4,015,468 (6%,649,178)
Hon-controlling interests g 1327 ,905) (78,924) - -
Total 16,186,151 (89,538,184) 4,015,468 (69,649 176)

BASIC EARMINGS PER SHARE

Profit (loss) (Baht per share) 19 0.0217 (0.1873) 0.0126 (0.2008)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (share) 19 78,083 372 346,891,514 378,083,372 346,891 514
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H.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

{umit : Baht) Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
other components of
Retained sarmings shareholders’ equity Equity
Issued and Premium surplus on change in Translation adjustment  attributable to
paid-up on common propertion of investment  Appropriated for on foreign currency the Company’s  Mon-controlling
Motes  share capital  share capital in subsidiary company legal reserve Unappropriated financial statements shareholders interests Total

consolidated Frs

Balance as at 1 January 2023 346,691,514 380,640,846 550,447 15,220,095 121,661,871 117,331,751} 847,633,044 1,651,100 549,284,144
Dividend payment | - - - - [&,935,811) - 16,935,811) - [&,935,811)
Transactions with owners - - - - [6,935,811) - 16,935,811) - [6,935,811)
Loss for the year 9 - - - - (64, 368, 630) - |64,968,630) (78, %24) {65,047 554)
Decrease in non-controlling interests during the year - - 5,100 - - - 5,100 (5, 100) -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (24,490 630) (24 430,430) - 124 430 630)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 5,100 - (&4, %68,630) (24,490,630) (89,454,160) (&4,024) (8%,538,184)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 346,691,514 380,640,846 555,547 15,220,095 49,757,430 41,822,381} 751,243,073 1,567,076 752,810,149
Balance as at 1 January 2024 346,691,514 380,640,846 555,547 15,220,095 49,757,430 41,822,381} 751,243,073 1,567,076 752,810,149
share increment during the year 18 110,000,116 85,200,290 - - - - 195,200,406 - 195,200,406
Dividend payment | - - - - (17,344,577) - {17,344,577) - 17,344,577)
Transactions with owners 110,000,116 85,200,290 - - - 17,344,577 - 177,855,829 - 177,855,62%
profit (loss) for the year - - - - & 187,11% - 8,187,119 (337,927) 7,649,192
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - (637,984) 8,964,921 8,326,937 10,022 B,336,95%
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 7,549,135 8,964,521 16,514,056 (327 ,905) 16,186,151
Transferred to legal reserve - - - 738,760 (238 260) - - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2024 456,891 630 445 841 138 555 549 15,458, 355 39,723 728 (32,857, +40) 945 612,958 1,239 171 946, B52 129
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M.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPAMY LINITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Unit : Baht)

Separate F/5
Balance as at 1 January 2023
Dividend payment

Transactions with owners

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Balance as at 1 January 2024

Increased share capital during the year

Dividend payment

Transactions with owners

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transferred to legal reserve

Balance as at 31 December 2024

Retained earnings

Issued and Premium
paid-up on common Appropriated for
Hotes share capital share capital legal reserve Unappropriated Total

346,891,514 380,640, 846 15,220,095 105,258,755 848,011,210
yal - - - (6,935,811) {6,935,811)
- - - (6,935,811) {6,935,811)
- - - (69,649,176 {69,649,176)
- - - (69,649,176 {69,649,176)
346,891,514 380,640,846 15,220,095 28,673,768 771,426,223
346 891,514 380,640 846 15,220,095 28,671,768 771,426,223
18 110,000,116 85,200,290 195,200,406
7 ) . . (17,344 577) {17.344,577)
110,000, 116 85,200,290 - (17,344 577) 177,855,819
- - - 4,765,202 4,765,202
- - - (T49,734) (743,734)
- - - 4,015,468 4,015,468

- - 238,260 (238,260)
456,891,630 465,841,136 15,458,355 15,106,399 953,297,520
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H.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

{unit : Baht) Consolidated F/5 Separate F/S

024 2023 2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit {loss) for the year 7,849,192 (65,047, 554) 4,765,202 (6%, 643, 176)
adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) to

net cash provided from (used in) operating activities:

Income tax expense (benefit) 8,524,825 (3,930,658) 2,058,558 (1,124,482)
Depreciation and amaortisation 42,363,278 47,607 570 34,239 591 37,895,264
Expected credit loss (reversal) {1,565, 764) 2,482,308 (319,801) 1,331,320

Loss {reversal of loss) on obsolete

and devaluation of inventories {1,264,313) (525,811} (1,200,326) 413,682
Unrealised loss on exchange rate 678,821 326,392 520,623 326,392
Impairment less on intangible asset 5,504,705 - - -
Impairment less on investment in associated company - 55,000,000 5,000,000 73,000,000
Share of loss from investment in associated company 9,212,639 19,073,131 - -
Loss on sale of investment in associated company 5,380,031 - 9,833,100 -
Loss on disposal of assets 639,249 10,591 639,307 10,591
Loss on written-off assets 159, 655 43,833 29,597 43,774
Loss on written off accounts receivable 77,378 - 277,378 -
Loss on written off inventories 1,384,341 - 1,048 956 -
Dividend income - - (7,608,800) (7,694,400)
Mon-current provision for employee benefits obligation (166, T88) 1,001,919 [355,172) B14,030
Laoss on written-off income tax refundable - 123,104 - -
Expenses of the issue ordinary shares {2,800,000) - (2,800,000) -
Interast income {1,09%,695) {751,667} (271,455) {(29,028)
Finance casts 5,032,643 4,659,699 3,504,551 3,462,960

cash provided from operations before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 79,380,200 60,072,857 50,161,543 38,800,927

Decrease (increase) in operating assets:

Trade accounts receivable - general customers 19,591,679) 4,568,368 (1,637,811) [4,999,680)
- related parties 163,71 146,858 (3,121,082) [B11,411)
Other current receivable - general oustomers (970, 348) 2,966,386 - -
- related parties (14,373) - (207,800) -
Ampunt due from subsidiary - - (#1,750,000) -
Long-term loan to employees |3,586,779) - (3,586,773) -
Inventories 6,887,015 [19,647,138) 23,874,741 {22,993,380)
refundable value added tax {5,625,107) {3,026,339) (2,174,247) (900, 685)
other current assets 1,386,707 (566,830) 2,014,217 (526,67%)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade accounts payable - general suppliers 7,331,250 10,843,791 3,044,405 4,476,850

- related companies 44 606 111,755) 795 [ 606, 909)

Other current payable - general suppliers 2,983, 88T 3,153,455 1,834,154 3,153,455
Other current payable - related companies - (2,418) 558 680 12,711)
Accrued expenses {1,01%,510) (5,848,919) 95,698 4,209,219
other current liabilities {204,150) 1,537,887 (193,564) 2,121,310
Cash provided from operations 77,765,510 53,186,803 34,511,854 1,850,306
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H.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIWITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTIMUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

{Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/s
2024 2023 1024 2023

Cash provided from operations (Continued) 77,765,510 53,186,803 34,912,856 21,850,306

Interest received 1,099,635 751,667 271,455 29,028

Interast paid (4,737,956) {4,350,652) (3,653,417) (3,194,682)

Income tax paid {7,035, 745) 13,216,144) (1,082,185) {33,713)
Het cash provided from operating activities 47,091,484 45,371,634 30,448,709 18, 660,93%
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets [114,516,637) (55,212,038) (12,474,248) (7,545,631)

Purchase of computer software {108, 250) {137,406) (10&,250) {57 ,600)

Procesds from sale of inwestment in associated company 500, D00 - 500,000 -

Payment for investment in subsidiaries - - {161,000,000) (&, 000,000

Procesds from disposal of fixed assets 710,281 145,754 710,281 145,794

Cash received from dividend - - 7,608,800 7,654,400
Het cash used in investing activities (113,414, 604) (55,203,650 (164,743 ,417) (5,743,037)
cash Flows from Financing Activities

Decrease in short-term loans from bank 4,343,342) [25,455,5%1) [4,343,342) (16,018,191)

Cash received from long-term loan from bank - 47,187,000 - -

repayment of long-term loan (17,442,000) {5,145,000) - -

repayment of lease liability (383,783) (426, 588) (383,789) (426 588)

Dividend payment (17,335,858) (6,935,811} (17,335,858 (6,%35,811)

Cash received from issuance of share capital 198,000,404 - 198,000,406 -
Het cash provided from (used in) financing activities 158,435,417 9,224,010 175,937,417 (23,380,5%0)
Exchange differences from foreign currency

financial statements translation 5,121,704 1,339,930) - -
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 117,294,003 (947,936) 41,622,709 (10,482 ,688)
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGIHNING OF YEAR 111,461 481 112,407, 417 16,508,795 16,991,483
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENDING OF YEAR 118,755 484 111,481,481 58,131,504 16,508,795
supplemental disclosures for cash flows information

Mon-cash items

iChange in payable for purchase of fixed assets {144 578) 540,469 [144,578) 540,465

sccrued dividend payment (13,328) (4,513) {13,328) (4,51%)

recognize of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 5,523,007 - - -
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated under the Thai Civil and Commercial Code as a limited company on 24 May 1990
in the name of M.D. Rubber Company Limited. The Company changed its status to a public company and
registered the change of its name to “N.D. Rubber Public Company Limited” on 15 May 2014 and was listed on
the Market for Alternative Investment in 15 January 2015.

The principal business of the Company is manufacturing and distributing motorcycle tyres and tubes, and
distributing battery for automobile and motorcycle, including other related services. The principal business of
the group of subsidiaries are manufacturing and distributing rubber and synthetic products for automobile and
motorcycle, distributing motorcycle tyres and tubes, distributing footwear, producing and distributing
electricity from the solar energy, including testing, inspection, repairing and certification services for electrical

components and electronic devices.

The registered office address of the Company is 129 Moo 3, MNongsak-Phanasnikom Road, Nongeiroon Sub-
district, Banbueng, Chonburi.

As at 31 December 2024, the major shareholders of the Company is “Samrittivanicha™ Family which holds at
35.89% of shareholding. (2023: 47.32% of shareholding)

These financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised directors on 28 February
2025.

BASIS OF SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS™) issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions and the financial reporting
requirements promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange
Act. These financial statements are officially prepared in the Thai language. The translation of these

financial statements to other languages must be in compliance with the official report in Thai.

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except

as otherwise disclosed specifically.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to use certain critical accounting estimates and to exercise judgment in the process of
adopting and application the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2.2

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of N.D. Rubber Public Company
Limited and its subsidiaries which the Company can exercise control or holdings the voting shares more

than 50 percentage of total voting shares.

Significant inter-company transactions with subsidiaries and indirect subsidiaries have been eliminated

in the consolidated financial statements preparation.

The subsidiaries have the same reporting date of 31 December. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared using the same accounting policies for similar transactions or accounts of similar

nature in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements.

The financial statements of the overseas subsidiaries are translated into Baht using exchange rates at
the date of the statement of financial position for assets and liabilities, and the monthly average
exchange rates for revenues and expenses. The resultant differences are presented under the caption
“Translation adjustments for foreign currency financial statements™ as other comprehensive income

under other components of shareholders’ equity.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of subsidiary companies’ profit or loss and net assets that
are not held by the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income and the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Dilution gains (loss) arises on shares issued by subsidiaries and sold to third parties are recognized as
surplus (discount) on change in proportion of investment in subsidiary company, which is presented under

shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

Provisions for liabilities and expenses are recognised in the financial statements when the Group have a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events with probable outflow of resources to
settle the obligation and where a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The contingent assets

will be recognised as separate assets only when the realisation is virtually certain.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional

currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2.3 Amended accounting and financial reporting standards

2.3.1 Amended accounting standards effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

» Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements)

The amendments aim to make accounting policy disclosures more informative by replacing
the requirement to disclose “significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information™. The amendments also provide guidance under what circumstance, the
accounting policy information is likely to be considered material and therefore requiring

disclosure.

These amendments have no effect on the measurement or presentation of any items in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group but affect the disclosure of accounting

policies of the Group.

« Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to TAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors)

The amendments to such TAS, which added the definition of accounting estimates, clarify
that the effects of a change in an input or measurement technique are changes in
accounting estimates, unless resulting from the correction of prior period errors. These
amendments clarify how entities make the distinction between changes in accounting

estimate, changes in accounting policy and prior period errors.
These amendments had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

» Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to TAS 12 Income Taxes)

The amendments introduce an additional criterion for the initial recognition exemption,
whereby the exemption does not apply to the initial recognition of an asset or liability
which at the time of the transaction, gives rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences.

These amendments had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

« International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to TAS 12 Income

Taxes)

The amendments introduce a mandatory exception to entities from the recognition and
disclosure of information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two
model rules. The exception is effective immediately and retrospectively. The amendments
also provide for additional disclosure requirements with respect to an entity's exposure to

Pillar Two income taxes.

The Group’s management had determined that the Group is not within the scope of the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)'s Pillar Two Model Rules
and the exception to the recognition and disclosure of information about deferred tax

assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes is not applicable to the Group.

2.3.2 Amendments to accounting and financial reporting standards effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

= Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to TAS 7 & TFRS 7)
The amendments require entities to provide certain specific disclosures for qualitative and
quantitative related to supplier finance arrangements. The amendments also provide
guidance on characteristics of supplier finance arrangements.
These amendments had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

+ Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to TFRS 16)
TFRS 16 require a seller or lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’
in a way that the seller-lessee would not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that

relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee.

These amendments had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

+ Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current and Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants (Amendments to TAS 1)

The amendments clarify the following:

- An entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period must have substance and must exist at the end of the reporting
period.

- If an entity's right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to covenants, such
covenants affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period only if
the entity is required to comply with the covenant on or before the end of the
reporting period.

- The classification of a liability as current or non-current is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.

- In case of a liability that can be settled, at the option of the counterparty, by the
transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, such settlement terms do not affect
the classification of the liability as current or non-current only if the option is

classified as an equity instrument.
These amendments had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Material Accounting Policy

The material accounting policies are described in the respective notes to the financial statements.
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTION AND JUDGMENT

Use of accounting estimates
When preparing the financial statements, management undertake judgments, estimates and assumptions about
recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The actual results may differ from

the judgments, estimates and assumptions made by management.
Critical accounting estimates, assumption and judgments are as follow:
4.1 Expected credit losses of trade accounts receivable

The Group estimates expected credit losses of trade accounts receivable by measuring the expected
credit losses, trade accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the due of payment. The expected loss rates are based on the historical payment profiles, the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced and the impact of potential factor to the expected

loss rates.
4.2  Impairment loss on investments

The Company treats investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
their net realise value. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires management

judgment.
4.3 Allowances for decline in value of slow-moving and defective inventories

The Group estimates allowances for slow-moving and defective inventories to reflect decline value of
inventories. The allowances are based on the consideration of inventory turnovers and deterioration of

each category and requires management judgment.
4.4 Plant, equipment and intangible assets

Management regularly determines the estimated useful lives and residual values for the Group's plant,
equipment and intangible assets, and will revise the depreciation where useful lives and residual values
previously estimated have changed or subject to be written down for their technical obsolescence or

when they are no longer in used.
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M.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment testing of intangible assets, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be
generated by asset or the cash generated by the asset or the cash generating unit and to choose a suitable

discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Post-employment benefits (defined benefit plans)

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations. Inherent within
these calculations are assumptions as to discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and other

demographic factors. Actual post-retirement costs may ultimately differ from these estimates.

Deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability
of the Group’'s future taxable profit against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
In addition, management judgment is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or

uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Leases

Determine the lease terms

The Group shall determine the lease term is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group shall consider all relevant ducts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the option to extend the

lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease.

The Group shall revise the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable of a lease by may be
caused by the Group using (or not exercising) rights. The reasonably certain assessment of certainty upon
the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change in circumstances. This has an impact

on assessment of the lease term and is under the control of the Group.

Determination of the discount rate on lease liabilities
The Group assesses interest rate of incremental borrowing of lessee. Using information provided by third-
party financing of each leasing entity and updating information obtained to reflect changes in the

tenant’s financial factors, if possible.
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

5.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/5 Separate F/S

2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash 68,548 195,273 37116 100,000
Deposit in transit 6,381,123 - 6,381,123

Cash at banks

- Current account 107,473,866 62,771,403 32,132,889 8,765,689

- Saving account 114,831,947 7,702,680 19,580,376 7,643,106

- Fixed account less than 3 months - 40,792,125 - -
Total 228,755,484 111,461,481 58,131,504 16,508,795

(a) Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and highly liquid cash in banks (which do not have
restriction of usage) that are readily convertible to cash on maturity date with insignificant risk of change

in value.

The currency denomination of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/5
2024 2023 2024 2023
THB 153,708,466 23,776,454 56,633,574 14,266,841
MYR 72,351,613 83,579,825 1,903 1,263
uso 2,695,405 4,105,202 1,496,027 2,240,691
Total 228,755,484 111,461,481 58,131,504 16,508,795
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N.D. RUBEER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

6. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(a) Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by the Company,

whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated company and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in

the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel,

directors and officers with authority in the planning and directing the Company's operations.

Relationship with related parties are as follows:

Name Relationship
M.D. Interparts Co., Ltd. Subsidiary company
M.D. Green Planet Co., Ltd. Subsidiary company
Atronic Co., Ltd. Subsidiary company
FKR MALAYSIA SDN. BHD. Subsidiary company

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS “FUNG KEONG RUBBER MAMUFACTORY
(MALAYA) SDN.BHD.™)
FKR MARKETING SND. BHD.
GCB TRADING SDN. BHD.
Etran (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Etran Rental Co., Ltd.
T.Thai Charoen Service Co., Ltd.
T.Thai Chareon Rubber Co., Ltd.
Thai Chareon Service Tyre Co., Ltd.
Siam Plastwood Co., Ltd.
Ms. Oraphan Samrittivanicha
Sangcharoen Tools Center Co., Ltd.

White House Plastic Limited Partnership
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Co-director
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N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(b) Significant transactions with related parties for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/5S Separate F/S

For the years ended 31 December

Pricing Policy 2024 2023 2024 2023

Revenue from sales of goods
- Subsidiary company Agreed price - - 128,179,633 156,911

- Indirect subsidiary

company Agreed price - - 108,065,319 185,027,321

- Associated company Agreed price - 415,450 - 415,450
- Related parties Agreed price 3,837,622 3,237,288 3,642,689 3,227,615
Total 3,837,622 3,652,738 239,887,641 188,827,297

Purchase of raw materials

- Subsidiary company Agreed price - - 327,134 2,991,176
- Related companies Agreed price 244,290 162,588 244,290 162,588
Total 244,290 162,588 571,424 3,153,764

Revenue from testing solar system

- Related companies Agreed price 194,932 - - -

Rental income

- Subsidiary company Agreed price - - 1,834,139 1,800,000

Service income

- Subsidiary company Agreed price - - 11,682 31,457

Other income

- Subsidiary company Agreed price - - 180,000 130,841

Electricity expense from testing solar system

- Subsidiary company Agreed price - - 6,635,696 -

127
561 One Repott 202



N.D. RUBBER PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/5S

For the years ended 31 December

Pricing Policy 2024 2023 2024 2023
Other expense
- Subsidiary company Agreed price - - 578,500 644,854
- Related companies Agreed price 143,977 195,914 90,944 98,414
Total 143,977 195,914 669,444 743,268

(c) Key directors and management compensation

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/5S

For the years ended 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
Short-term benefits 15,302,385 12,850,657 7,680,032 7,990,999
Provision for post-employment benefit 167,697 161,728 138,608 133,626
Total 15,470,082 13,012,385 7,818,640 8,124,625

(d) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balances with related parties are as follows :

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/5 Separate F/5

2024 2023 2024 2023

Trade accounts receivable

- Subsidiary company - - 16,898,396 48,323

- Indirect subsidiary company - - - 13,856,905

- Associated company - 165,636 - 165,636

- Related parties 571,473 569,628 571,473 569,628

Total 571,473 732,264 17,469,869 14,640,492
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/S

2024 2023 2024 2023

Other accounts receivable

- Subsidiary company - - 359,900 152,100
- Related parties 14,373 - - B
Total 14,373 - 359,900 152,100

Amount due from subsidiary

- Subsidiary company ) ) 41,750,000 i}
Trade accounts payable

- Subsidiary company - - 56,978 101,287

- Related companies 81,99 37,390 81,996 37,390
Total 81,99 37,390 138,974 138,677
Other accounts payable

- Subsidiary company - - 645,256 86,575
Key directors and management compensation

- Employee benefits obligation 2,198,584 2,030,887 1,704,180 1,565,572

Amount due from subsidiary

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had advance payments to a subsidiary of Baht 41.75 million for purchase
of machinery on behalf of the subsidiary due to the subsidiary being established.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

7. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the aged of trade accounts receivable are as follows:

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/5 Separate F/S

2024 2023 2024 2023

Trade accounts receivable - general customers

Not yet due 84,007,032 77,076,284 34,271,328 32,274,065
Over due:
Less than 3 months 17,072,387 14,421,465 14,227,384 13,574,017
3 - 6 months - 1,602,798 - 1,394,365
6 - 12 months - 1,121,867 - 429,929
Over 12 months 2,156,268 2,157,235 2,156,268 1,854,025
Total 103,235,687 96,379,649 50,654,980 49,526,391
Less Allowance for expected credit loss (2,557,507) (4,074,732) (2,551,350) (2,871,151}
MNet 100,678,180 92,304,917 48,103,630 46,655,240

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Mot yet due 571,473 328,615 13,870,984 13,021,897
Over due:

Less than 3 months - 406,649 3,598,885 1,618,595
Total 571,473 735,264 17,469,869 14,640,492

(a) A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration.

(b) Trade accounts receivable are presented at the net realisable value. The Group applies the TFRS 9
simplified approach to measure expected credit losses, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the trade accounts receivable. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade accounts receivable have been grouped based on the due of payment. The expected loss
rates are based on the payment profiles and the corresponding historical credit losses which are adjusted
to reflect the current and forward-looking information on economic factors affecting the ability of the

customers to settle the receivables. The expected credit losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Allowance for expected credit losses of accounts receivable as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follow:

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidate F/S

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Allowance for

expected credit

Allowance for

expected credit

The aged of accounts receivable Book Value losses Book Value losses

Mot yet due 84,578,505 155,845 77,404,899 130,964
Less than 3 months 17,072,387 245,394 14,828,114 202,968
3 - 6 months - - 1,602,798 620,778
6 - 12 months - - 1,121,867 962,819
Over 12 months 2,156,268 2,156,268 2,157,235 2,157,203
Total 103,807,160 2,557,507 97.114,913 4,074,732
(Unit : Baht) Separate F/S

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Allowance for

Allowance for

expected expected credit
The aged of accounts receivable Book Value credit losses Book Value losses
Mot yet due 48,142,312 155,845 45,295,952 130,964
Less than 3 months 17,826,269 239,237 15,192,612 202,968
3 - 6 months - - 1,394,365 412,347
6 - 12 months - - 429,929 270,881
Over 12 months 2,156,268 2,156,268 1,854,025 1,853,991
Total 68,124,849 2,551,350 64,166,883 2,871,151
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During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the movements in allowance for expected credit loss of

trade accounts receivable as follow:

(Unit : Baht)

Balance as at 1 January

Add Expected credit losses

Less Reversal of expected credit losses
Write-off bad debt

Exchange differences from financial

statements translation

Balance as at 31 December

INVENTORIES

(Unit : Baht)

Raw materials

Work in process

Finished goods

Supply inventories

Fuel

Packaging

Goods in transit

Total

Less Allowance for obsolete and

declining values of inventories

Inventories - net

Consolidated F/5

Separate F/S

2024 2023 2024 2023

4,074,732 1,630,084 2,871,151 1,539,831
6,243 2,653,890 - 1,497,771
(1,294,629) (171,582) (42,423) (166,451)
(277,378) - (277,378) -
48,539 (37,660) - -
2,557,507 4,074,732 2,551,350 2,871,151
Consolidated F/S Separate F/5

2024 2023 2024 2023
24,100,643 35,764,227 23,044,853 35,060,820
12,007,758 13,152,288 11,385,264 12,653,636
112,040,059 98,810,356 24,024,508 29,542,941
3,167,382 3,141,602 2,659,191 2,502,275
283,872 231,360 283,872 231,360
5,183,219 5,036,683 5,146,982 4,952,718
10,595,226 19,474,616 10,595,226 17,119,844
167,378,159 175,611,132 77,139,896 102,063,594
(1,985,760) (3,211,650) (385,235) (1,585,561)
165,392,399 172,399,442 76,754,661 100,478,033
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() Inventories are presented at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is calculated by first-in first-

(b)

]

our (FIFO) method.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of

completion and selling expenses. Provision is made, where necessary, for slow moving and defective

inventories based on the Group's experiences and the current information.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the movements of allowances for obsolete and

declining value of inventories are as follows:

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2024 2023 2024 2023
Beginning balance as at 1 January 3,211,690 3,829,562 1,585,561 1,171,879
Add Allowance for obsolete and
devaluation of inventories 271,398 1,103,038 - 436,120
Less Reversal of allowance for
obsolete inventories (151,370) (441,832) (151,370) (22,438)
Write-off during period (1,384,341) (1,187,017) (1,048,956) -
Exchange differences from financial
statements translation 38,383 (92,061) - -
Ending balance as at 31 December 1,985,760 3,211,690 385,235 1,585,561

Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023

are as follows:

(Unit : Baht) Consolidated F/5 Separate F/5
2024 2023 2024 2023

Cost of sales 740,210,689 693,490,386 594,987,108 555,784,148
Allowance for obsolete and

devaluation of inventories 271,398 1,103,038 436,120
Reversal of allowance for obsolete and

devaluation of inventories (1,535,711) (1,628,849) (1,200,326) (22,438)
MNet 738,946,376 692,964,575 593,786,782 556,197,830
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Unit : Thowsand Baht) Separate F/S
Paid-up Percentage of Dividend income
Country of Share capital Shareholding Cost method during the year
Subsidiaries Incorporation Type of business 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Direct subsidiaries
N.D. Interparts Co., Lid. Thailand Manufacturing and distributing rubber and

synthetic products for motorcycle and

automaobile 6,100 6,100 N7 .77 5,598 5,598 - -
FKR MALATSIA SDM. BHD. (FORMERLY KMOWHN AS “FUNG Malaysia Distributing of motorcycle tyres and tubes and
KEONG RUBBER MANUFACTORY (MALAYA) SDM.BHD.™) other rubber related product 161,028 161,028 100.00 100.00 408,017 408,017 7,600 7,694
M.D. Green Planet Co., Ltd. Thailand Producing and distributing electricity from the
solar energy 16,000 7,000 99,31 98.42 15,889 6,889 - -
XEromic Co., Ltd. Thailand Testing, inspection, repair, and certification of
electrical parts and electronic equipment 152,000 - 100.00 - 152,000 - - -
Indirect subsidiaries
FKR MARKETING SMD. BHD. Malaysia Distributing bicycle and motorcycle tyres and
tubes. - 23,000 - 100.00 - - - -
GCB TRADING SDN. BHD. Malaysia Distributing footwear.
23,000 23,000 100.00 100.00 - - - -
Total 581,505 420,504 7,609 7,694
134

561 One Repott 202



135
561 One Repott 202



